
 

MARCH 13 2024 
03/13/2024 [03:00 PM] 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

For the Regular Board Meeting of March 13, 2024, at 10:00 a.m., in the Redwood CDEF meeting room 
at the Jim Vidak Education Center, 6200 S. Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, California. 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 
b. Welcome 

2.  ADA ACCOMMODATION REQUIREMENT 

Persons who are in need of a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate 
in the board meeting must make a request in writing to the Office of the County Superintendent of 
Schools, 6200 South Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, California, P.O. Box 5091, 559/733-6301. A request for 
accommodation should specify the nature of the modification or accommodation requested, including 
any necessary auxiliary aids or services required and the name and telephone number of the person 
making the request. The written request should be made as soon as possible and no later than 2 days 
before the meeting. The agenda, agenda packet and any written documents distributed to the board 
during a public meeting will be made available in appropriate alternative formats upon request by a 
person with a disability as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

Written documents concerning agenda items are available for public inspection during normal business 
hours within 72 hours of a regular board meeting at the Tulare County Office of Education, 6200 South 
Mooney Boulevard, Visalia, California. 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the board on any agenda item, or other item of interest within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the board during the public comment period. Agenda items may also be 
addressed by the public at the time they are taken up by the board. The board is not able to discuss or 
take action on any item not appearing on the agenda.  A five-minute time limit can be imposed on 
public input for individuals/issues as deemed necessary. 

4.  ACTION ITEMS 
4.a.  Routine Matters 

 
4.a.a.  Consent Calendar 

a. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting of February 14, 2024, Encl. No. 1 
b. Authorization of Countywide Registration of Credentials, Encl. No. 2 



2 of 2 

c. Authorization of Temporary County Certificates, Encl. No. 3 
d. Authorization of Countywide Emergency Permit Applications, Encl. No. 4 

4.b.  Old Business 
4.b.a.  Consideration and Approval, Second Reading, Board Bylaw (BB) 9320 - Meetings and Notices -- 
Dr. Fernie Marroquin, Encl. No. 5 
4.b.b.  Consideration and Approval, Second Reading, Board Bylaw (BB) 9322 - Agenda/Meeting 
Materials -- Dr. Fernie Marroquin, Encl. No. 6 
4.b.c.  Consideration and Approval, Second Reading, Board Bylaw (BB) 9325 - Meeting Conduct -- Dr. 
Fernie Marroquin, Encl. No. 7 

4.c.  New Business 
4.c.a.  First Reading of Board/Superintendent Policy (BP/SP) 5141.52 and Administrative Regulation 
(AP) 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention -- John Vining, Encl. No. 8 
4.c.b.  Consideration and Approval, IDEA 619 Federal Preschool Grant Award 2023-2024 ($1,212,888) 
-- Joe Martinez, Encl. No. 9 
4.c.c.  Consideration and Approval, Juvenile Detention Facility (JDF) Proposed School Calendar 2024-
2025 -- Joe Andrade, Encl. No. 10 
4.c.d.  Consideration and Approval, Transportation Plan -- Tammy Bradford, Encl. No. 11 
4.c.e.  Consideration and Approval, California Friday Night Live Month for April 2024 -- Nani Dodson, 
Encl. No. 12 
4.c.f.  Consideration and Approval, Budget Revisions through January 31, 2024 -- Jody Arriaga, Encl. 
No. 13 
4.c.g.  Consideration and Approval, Second Interim Report as of January 31, 2024 -- Jody Arriaga, 
Encl. No. 14 
4.c.h.  Consideration and Approval, Vote for 2024 CSBA Assembly County Delegate for Region 12 -- 
Joe Enea, Encl. No. 15 
4.c.i.  Consideration and Approval, Vote for 2024 CSBA Assembly County Delegate for Region 12A -- 
Joe Enea, Encl. No. 16 

5.  Information (Non-Discussion Items) 

a. Letters and Communication/Correspondence 
b. Reports from Superintendent and Staff 
c. Reports from Board, Information and Questions 

6.  Next Scheduled Board Meeting 

April 10, 2024  --  10:00 a.m. at SCICON 

7.  Adjournment 



TULARE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
02/14/2024, 3:00 PM – 6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia, CA  93277 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

1. CALL TO ORDER

Joe Enea welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  Debby Holguin led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

2. Board Members and Staff Present
2.a.  Board members present: President Joe Enea, Vice President Debby Holguin, Judy Coble, Tom
Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez, and Ex-Officio Secretary Tim A. Hire. Staff
members present: Nani Dodson, Dr. Fernie Marroquin, Jack Schreuder, Lisa Lemus, Joe Andrade, Dr.
Helen Milliorn-Feller, Julie Berk, Kevin Jessee, Sara Hamilton, Tammy Bradford, Marlene Moreno, Rob
Herman, John Davis, Jose Bedolla, Anthony Paz, and Chris Meyer.

3. ADA ACCOMMODATION REQUIREMENT

Mr. Enea announced that ADA accommodations had been met. 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Members of the public did not address any matter of jurisdiction. 

5. ACTION ITEMS
5.a.  Routine Matters

5.a.a.  Consent Calendar

Vote Results 
Yea: 7 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Debby Holguin, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0 

Abstain: 0 
Not Cast: 0 

Motion: Chris Reed     Second: Tony Rodriguez 

Enclosure No. 1
Agenda of 3/13/24



2 of 6 

5.b.  New Business 
  

5.b.a.  Consideration and Approval, Executed Amendment - Department of Health Care Services 
21-10068 Amendment #A05 -- Nani Dodson, Encl. No. 6 
  

  
 

Nani Dodson requested approval for the executed amendment for the Department of Health Care Services 21-
10068.  Superintendent Hire advised the Board that Nani is now the permanent director of CFNLP. 

Vote Results 
Yea: 7 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Debby Holguin, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 0  

Motion: Celia Maldonado-Arroyo     Second: Tom Link 

5.b.b.  Presentation of Differentiated Assistance -- Lisa Lemus, Encl. No. 7 
  

  

 

Lisa Lemus gave a presentation on Differentiated Assistance (DA).  There was a study conducted by WestEd which 
illuminated positive outcomes among Tulare County districts that have received DA support through TCOE.  Under 
California’s accountability system and through the California School Dashboard, some districts are eligible for 
Differentiated Assistance support through their county office of education.  At TCOE, this support is coordinated by 
the Leadership Support Services Department in partnership with other departments. Lisa outlined some of the 
services that have resulted in positive outcomes in Tulare County districts. 

Joe Enea thanked Lisa for her presentation. 

  

5.b.c.  Presentation of the Williams Valenzuela Uniform Complaint Report , 4th Quarter of 2023 
from Tulare County School Districts -- Dedi Somavia, Encl. No. 8  
  

  
 

Dedi Somavia presented the 4th Quarter of the 2023 Williams Valenzuela Uniform Complaint Report through 
December 31, 2023.  There were no complaints received during this period. 

5.b.d.  Consideration and Approval, IDEA 611 Local Assistance Entitlements Grant Award 2023-
2024 ($21,104,192) -- Tammy Bradford, Encl. No. 9 
  

  
 

Tammy Bradford asked for approval for the IDEA 611 Local Assistance Entitlement Grant award for the 2023-2024 
for $21,104,192. 

 

 

 

 

 



3 of 6 

Vote Results 
Yea: 7 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Debby Holguin, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 0  

Motion: Debby Holguin     Second: Tom Link 

5.b.e.  Consideration and Approval, Tulare County Plan for Providing Educational Services to 
Expelled Youth 2024-2027 -- Joe Andrade, Encl. No. 10 
  

  
 

Joe Andrade asked for approval for the Tulare County Plan for providing education services to expelled youth during 
2024-2027. 

Vote Results 
Yea: 7 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Debby Holguin, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 0  

Motion: Tony Rodriguez     Second: Judy Coble 

5.b.f.  Presentation of Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Mid-Year Monitoring Report 
2023-2024 for TCOE, Court/Community -- John Davis and Kevin Jessee, Encl. No. 11 
  

  

 

John Davis and Kevin Jessee advised the Board of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Mid-Year 
Monitoring for TCOE Court/Community.  The mid-year update is a locally developed report that includes all 
available mid-year outcome data related to metrics identified in the 2023–24 LCAP, and all available mid-year 
expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the 2023–24 LCAP.  School districts shall present a 
report on the annual update to the local control and accountability plan and the local control funding formula 
budget overview for parents on or before February 28 of each year at a regularly scheduled meeting of the 
governing board of the school district. 

5.b.g.  Presentation of Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Mid-Year Monitoring Report 
2023-2024 for La Sierra Military Academy (LSMA) -- Jose Bedolla, Encl. No. 12 
  

  

 

Jose Bedolla presented to the Board the 2024 LCAP Mid-Year Report for La Sierra Military Academy.  This updated 
LCAP (Local Control and Accountability Plan) requirement now mandates Local Educational Agencies to annually 
provide an LCAP mid-year update presentation to their board, in an effort to ensure that progress towards the goals 
is continually monitored and evaluated. 

5.b.h.  Presentation of Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Mid-Year Monitoring Report 
2023-2024 for University Preparatory High School (UPHS) -- Helen Milliorn-Feller, Encl. No. 13 
  

  

 

Dr. Helen Milliorn-Feller presented the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Mid-Year Report 2023-2024 for 
University Preparatory High School (UPHS).  Updated LCAP requirements now mandate Local Educational Agencies  



4 of 6 

 

to annually provide an LCAP mid-year update presentation to their board, in an effort to ensure that progress 
towards the goals is continually monitored and evaluated. 

President Enea thanked Helen for her report. 

5.b.i.  Consideration and Approval, Court, Community and Special Education Schools 
Comprehensive School Safety Plan 2023-2024 -- John Davis and Sarah Hamilton, Encl. No. 14  
  

  

 

John Davis and Sarah Hamilton presented the Safety Plan for Court/Community and Special Ed School 
Comprehensive School Safety Plan for the 2023-2024.  Their plan includes strategies aimed at the prevention of, 
and education about, potential incidents involving crime and violence on the school campus and aspects of social, 
emotional, and physical safety for both youth and adults.  They requested approval of this plan. 

Vote Results 
Yea: 7 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Debby Holguin, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 0  

Motion: Chris Reed     Second: Celia Maldonado-Arroyo 

5.b.j.  Consideration and Approval, La Sierra Military Academy's Comprehensive School Safety Plan 
2023-2024 -- Jose Bedolla, Encl. No. 15  
  

  
 

Jose Bedolla requested approval for La Sierra Military Academy's School Safety Plan for 2023-2024. 

Vote Results 
Yea: 7 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Debby Holguin, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 0  

Motion: Tom Link     Second: Tony Rodriguez 

5.b.k.  Consideration and Approval, University Preparatory High School's Comprehensive School 
Safety Plan 2023-2024 -- Helen Milliorn-Feller, Encl. No. 16 
  

  
 

Dr. Helen Milliorn-Feller, requested approval for University Preparatory High School's (UPHS) School Safety Plan for 
2023-2024. 

Vote Results 
Yea: 7 Judy Coble, Joe Enea, Debby Holguin, Tom Link, Celia Maldonado-Arroyo, Chris Reed, Tony Rodriguez 
Nay: 0  

Abstain: 0  

Not Cast: 0  

Motion: Chris Reed     Second: Celia Maldonado-Arroyo 

 



5 of 6 

5.b.l.  First Reading, Board Bylaw (BB) 9320 - Meetings and Notices -- Tim Hire, Encl. No. 17 
  

  

 

Tim Hire presented the first reading.  Changes are mainly to clean up the language for Meetings and Notices BB 
9320. 

This is a mandated by law being updated and revised according to law.  This bylaw is being updated to reflect the 
procedures for "Teleconferencing During a Personal Emergency" and "Teleconferencing for Just Cause" set forth in 
AB 361 and AB 557; and the procedure for complying with the Brown Act when distributing materials to the County 
Board less than 72 hours before a regular meeting and outside of regular business hours, set forth in AB 2647. 

5.b.m.  First Reading, Board Bylaw (BB) 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials (Repeal/rescind BB9323-
Construction of Agenda Now in BB 9322) -- Tim Hire, Encl. No. 18 
  

  

 

Tim Hire presented the First Reading of Board Bylaw (BB) 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials.  This is a mandated law 
to be adopted.  This bylaw repeals/rescinds and removes BB 9323 - Construction of Agenda which is now contained 
in BB 9322 and is being updated to reflect current laws and TCOE practices.  Education Code 35145.5 mandates that 
district boards adopt reasonable regulations to ensure that members of the public can place matters directly 
related to school district business on board meeting agendas.  Although 35145.5 does not explicitly discuss county 
boards, the same requirements likely apply to county boards.  This bylaw includes the content of the existing bylaw 
9323 and is being revised according to law.  The updates reflect the new laws AB 2449 and AB 2647. 

5.b.n.  First Reading, Board Bylaw (BB) 9325 - Meeting Conduct -- Tim Hire, Encl. No. 19 
  

  

 

Superintendent Hire presented the first reading of the board bylaw (BB) 9325 - Meeting Conduct.  This is a 
mandated bylaw being updated and revised according to law.  Education Code 35145.5 mandates that district 
boards adopt reasonable regulations to ensure that members of the public can place matters directly related to 
school district business on board meeting agendas.  Although 35145.5 does not explicitly discuss county boards, the 
same requirements likely apply to county boards.  This bylaw is being updated to reflect the new law SB 1100 which 
authorizes the Board President to remove an individual for disrupting a Board meeting, establishes a procedure for 
warning the individual prior to their removal, and defines "disrupting" and "true threat of force." 

6.  INFORMATION (Non-Discussion Items) 
  

  

 

Reports from Superintendent Tim Hire: 

Mr. Hire pointed out the 2024 Support Staff Conference flyer, The Brown Act Handbook and the 700 Packet were in 
the Board folders to review.  There were also a few student events that have recently occurred:  Academic 
Decathlon took place on February 3.  Harmony Magnet Academy will represent Tulare County in the state 
competition.  Alondra Gutierrez took first place in Poetry Outloud and will represent us in Sacramento.  There will 
be 40 History Day projects that will compete at the state level in March.   

 

 



6 of 6 

The Anti-Tobacco and Marijuana Challenge Bowl will be held at the Galaxy Theatres in Tulare on February 
27.  March 7 is the Tulare County Spelling Bee Championship.  Mock Trial was held last night at Granite Hills Law 
and Justice Center.  UPHS was in the finals. 

Mr. Hire reported that our office will be closed next Monday for President's Day. 

The World Ad Expo had a record number of exhibitors this year.  He hoped the board would get a chance to visit 
this event and support our local districts with their food booths. 

This Friday, on February 16, we will host the Teacher Recruitment Fair with over 300 candidates and over 20 
districts participating.  Our staff here will be allowed to start their day early, to go home early, to allow parking 
space for the teacher fair candidates.  We have a large number of those candidates who are currently sub teachers 
who are looking to become a full-time teacher on provisional intern permits.   VUSD has offered the golden 
handshake to over 130 employees.  However, there will still be a budget challenge.  Mr. Hire said he is proud of 
Dedi Somavia, Marvin Lopez and their staff for running such a well-attended event. 

President Enea said he recently attended the groundbreaking ceremony for the new bus parking shed near Green 
Acres Middle School. 

Mr. Hire announced to the Board that he will have Dr. Marroquin run the March board meeting as he will be out of 
town presenting for NCERT. 

He wished everyone a Happy Valentine's Day and hoped they enjoyed the dessert from the Redwood Center Café 
students. 

7.  NEXT SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING 
  

  
 

The next meeting is scheduled on March 13, 2024, at 3:00 p.m. at TCOE, 6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia. 

8.  ADJOURNMENT 
  

  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:02 p.m. 
 



Enclosure No. 
Agenda of 3/13/2024

          CREDENTIALS REGISTERED

March 13, 2024

240045351 TC1 CL AAMODT DONALD T
240035183 SUBP EM ABBATH KEITH A
230314371 SUBP EM ABBATH KYLE
230184024 TC1 P5 ACEVEDO HERNAN ANAYH
240027432 SUBP EM ACOSTA DIANE
240032753 TC1 P5 ADAMS JEANNE M
240036301 SUBP EM ALBA JARERO JOSSUE F
240028612 TC15 EM ALCAZAR ESTEFANY
240029421 SUBP EM ALVARADO JOHN A
240028036 SC1A P5 ALVARADO JR JUAN V
240037071 SUBP EM ALVAREZ JOCELYN
240025112 SUBP EM ANDERSON AUDREY
240032312 SUBP EM ANDRADE ALEJANDRO V
240040429 SUBP EM ANDRADE GUADALUPE E
210098360 TC2 CL ANLAUF KATHERINE
240028231 SUBP EM AQUINO BRITTANY S
230162451 SC5 CL ARAUJO JASMINE
240024719 TC2 CL ARIAS SERENA M
240035264 SUBP EM ARIAS-LOPEZ ASHLEY G
240045164 SC3A P5 ARMENTA LEONILA
240029558 SUBP EM ARREGUIN MARIA DEL SOCORRO
240042195 SUBP EM ATKIN CHRISTOPHER T
240024277 TC2 CL AUSTIN MARIANNE T
240044981 TC1 P5 AVILEZ ARIAS ANGELES
240038010 SUBT EM AVILEZ-CAMARILLO DAVID
240045395 SUBP EM BACA JACQUELINE
240048620 SUBP EM BAILEY MILLER RUTH
240044937 TC2 CL BALES CARRIE L
240031963 TC1 CL BARRAZA KATHLEEN M
240031964 TC2 CL BARRAZA KATHLEEN M
240043094 TC2 P5 BAXTER SONIA
240033456 TC2 CL BEDOLLA NOEMI S
240023843 SUBT EM BELTRAN AGUIRRE STEPHANIE G
240032603 SUBP EM BENITEZ-HARO MONICA
190083429 TC2 CL BERGEN PHILLIP

2



240024419 SUBP EM BERN ANTHONY
240032620 SUBP EM BERNAL KIMBERLY
240037509 TC2 CL BESE DENISE A
240037506 TC1 CL BESE TERRY
240018085 SC1A P5 BISHOP DANIEL
230270470 TC1 CL BISHOP DANIEL
230172130 SC5 CL BOJORQUEZ ANGELINA
240042843 TC2 CL BOLANOS NANCY
240026877 SUBP EM BORGES MCKENZIE M
240035943 SUBP EM BORJON MICAH I
240036953 TC1 CL BRANDT LINDA J
240030501 SUBP EM BRANTLEY DESTINY
240043400 SUBP EM BRATTON DAVID K
240039227 SUBP EM BRUNO CANDESS M
W24000332 SA17 WV BUZANI ANA I
240040468 SUBT EM BUZZELLI CLAIRE N
240027121 SUBT EM CABEZAS ALEXIA
240036552 TC2 CL CAMARA CHRISTINE M
240041055 SUBP EM CAMPBELL TIFFANY R
240044886 TC2 P5 CAMPOS BREANNA
240044671 SUBP EM CANNON JONATHAN M
240033641 SUBP EM CAPISTRAN VINCENT
240034664 TC2 CL CARMONA MARIBEL
240030713 TC2 CL CARR STEPHANIE F
240051309 SUBP EM CARRANZA KAREN
240026710 SUBP EM CARRANZA LISANDRO U
240022851 SUBP EM CARREON ESTELA
240032364 SUBP EM CARRILLO RICHARD
240048938 SUBP EM CARRILLO-JUAREZ KARLA
240043185 SUBP EM CARTER MICHAEL A
240038382 SUBP EM CASILLAS CASSANDRA
240044651 SA13 EM CASTANON JENNIFER K
240046910 SUBP EM CASTILLO ALYSSA
230159602 TC2 P5 CASTILLO SYLVIA
240034246 SUBP EM CASTRO ISAAC
240022394 TC2 CL CAULK SHELLY L
240022250 SUBP EM CEBALLOS DANIEL
240028619 SUBP EM CERVANTES TANYA
240025481 TC2 CL CERVANTES-VENEGAS JAYNE M
240041302 SUBT EM CHAIDEZ RYAN
240041106 SUBP EM CHAMBERLAIN LINDA M
240038769 SUBP EM CHAN JENNIFER L
240035209 TC2 CL CHANDLER NEVA A



240035173 TC2 CL CHAVEZ ALYSSA
240036223 SC1A P5 CHAVEZ ALYSSA
240041645 TC2 CL CHAVEZ LILIANA
240016179 SUBP EM CHRISPENS CHRISHA
240044851 SUBP EM CIUK CHEYENNE
240032567 SUBP EM COEY MELISSA
240045200 TC2 CL COFFMAN MONA M
240013946 SC5 CL COLE CALVIN
240029429 TC4T CL COLLINS KELLY S
240026250 TC4A CL CONNER CAROLYNN
240040650 SUBP EM CORONA ANGELICA
240035233 SUBP EM CORONA FABIAN
240045118 SC1A CL COSTA CYNTHIA L
240031728 SC1A CL COVERT KEVIN A
240031712 TC1 CL COVERT KEVIN A
240027676 SC1A CL CRAVINS ABIGAIL R
240034588 SUBP EM CRUZ RUIZ MARIO
240029091 TC1 CL CUELLAR JUSTIN N
240027122 SUBT EM CUELLAR SANCHEZ JAQUELINE
240042671 SUBP EM DARWIN VANESSA R
240024812 SUBP EM DAVALOS-RODRIGUEZ JAQUELINE
240032978 TC2 CL DE ARMOND KRISTI L
230277122 TC1 P5 DE PONTE LAUREL
230312086 TC1 P5 DE PONTE LAUREL
240023784 SUBP EM DEL REAL SHELLEY L
240040835 SUBP EM DELGADO CERVANTES HERMELINDA N
240027793 SUBP EM DELON SARAH
230194133 SC5 CL DEVILBISS PATRICIA
240027636 SC1A CL DIXON JOSEPH B
240027635 TC2 CL DIXON JOSEPH B
240039634 TC3S CL DOMINGUEZ LAUREL R
240033655 TC2 CL DORADO LUIS A
240035796 SA13 EM DORADO LUIS A
240025491 TC1 CL DUDLEY-COYLE JILL L
240036377 TC2 CL DUGAY LANI D
240028224 SC1A CL DUNBAR MONTGOMERY N
240028223 TC2 CL DUNBAR MONTGOMERY N
240033881 TC2 CL EDWARDS-VASQUEZ NICOLE B
240036847 SC5 CL ELIAS HEATHER
240045487 SUBP EM ELLIOTT HOLLY A
240031977 SUBP EM ELLIOTT NICOLE E
240032146 TC2 CL ENNS DEBORAH M
240022752 SC1A IN ENRIQUEZ-PACHECO IMELDA



240041367 TC2 CL ESCARENO CECILIO L
240045737 TC1 CL ESPINDULA ROGER L
240041345 TC2 CL ESPINOZA LORENA D
240041388 SUBP EM ESQUIVEL CIRENA
240046782 TPSL TL ESTRADA JESSE 
240042007 SC1A P5 FABRIZIO GINA M
240032256 SC1A P5 FARKAS JOY N
240029116 TC2 CL FARKAS JOY N
240029299 P12C CD FELIX MARISSA D
230291786 SUBP EM FERNANDEZ DENIS
240035425 SUBP EM FERNANDEZ MARLENE
240021542 SUBP EM FERRIS DERICA
240040156 TC2 CL FLINT HOLLY L
240044432 TC3S P5 FLORES CHRISTINA M
240041292 SUBT EM FLORES HOPE A
W24000474 SC1A WV FLORES ISABEL S
240035584 TC2 P5 FLORES OLIVIA
240040087 SUBP EM FLORES-CABRALES DANIELA
240021744 SUBP EM FORD MATTHEW W
240023833 SUBP EM FOWLER MISTY R
230126042 TC2 P5 FRANCIS KELLY
240037698 TC1 CL FRANCO ALICIA
240025151 SUBP EM FRANCO CHAVEZ YAMILE
240041320 SUBT EM FRIAS YADIRA 
240023514 CTE CL GABEL HOLLY 
240024911 SUBP EM GALAN ERIC
240026348 SUBP EM GALLARDO JACQUELINE
240033327 TC2 CL GALVAN NICKOLAS E
240027647 SUBP EM GARAY KHALANI
240004149 TC3S CL GARAY MEGAN
240046751 SUBP EM GARCIA ANISSA 
240023894 SUBP EM GARCIA CADENAS VIANEY
240034341 TC2 CL GARCIA ERIC C
240043539 SUBT EM GARCIA HUNTER L
240030575 P12C CD GARCIA MARIA E
240042175 SUBP EM GARCIA NATALIE N
240033211 TC1 CL GARCIA REBECCA M
240039221 P12E CD GARNICA BRIDGETT H
240026917 TC2 CL GILLETT CHRISTINA R
240022292 TC1 CL GLUCKMANN ALEXANDER
240024683 TC2 CL GOEBEL LORI L
W24000326 SC8 WV GOMEZ ALEXIS
240040414 SUBT EM GOMEZ ANGELINA 



240026198 SUBP EM GOMEZ CHRISTOPHER
240038020 SUBP EM GONZALES DAMIEN M
240024157 TC2 P5 GONZALEZ CHRISTOPHER 
240042066 SUBP EM GONZALEZ DAVID
230263160 SUBP EM GONZALEZ EDDIE
240024298 SUBP EM GONZALEZ ERIC G
240042147 SUBP EM GONZALEZ GABRIELA A
240023605 SUBT EM GONZALEZ ISAIAH E
230313453 SUBP EM GONZALEZ JASMINE
240023606 SUBT EM GONZALEZ LOPEZ SIERRA
240032762 TC2 P5 GONZALEZ NYSSIA I
240024850 SUBP EM GOODMAN DENISE A
240046846 P12B CD GOVEA DE MARTINEZ MARTHA 
240039436 TC1 P5 GRANATH KYLIE
240036272 TC2 CL GRGICH LAURIE B
240038640 TC1 P5 GUERRA JACOB G
240035896 TC13 SL GUERRERO NATALIE
240037607 SUBP EM GUTIERREZ AMANDA
240032761 TC2 P5 GUTIERREZ ANTHONY
230094355 SUBT EM GUTIERREZ AUSTIN
240022324 SUBP EM GUTIERREZ CARBAJAL GEOVANNY
240043908 SUBP EM GUTIERREZ JONATHAN
240039466 TC1 CL GUZMAN BERENICE
240045159 TC2 CL GUZMAN DORIS E
240028571 SUBP EM GUZMAN ELIZABETH M
240029659 SUBP EM HAILEY LOREN S
240027081 SUBP EM HALL STEPHANIE L
240025507 TC4V CL HALOPOFF MICHELE
240028995 SUBP EM HASLAM ASHLEY
240039282 TC1 CL HAZELWOOD ELLEN D
240026369 TC2 CL HEMPHILL JONI S
230245929 SUBP EM HENDERSON KRISITN
240030524 SUBP EM HERNANDEZ BETHANY J
230134387 SC5 CL HERNANDEZ FELICITY
240042530 TC2 CL HERNANDEZ LIZETTE R
240030946 TC2 P5 HERNANDEZ MARGARITA 
240025363 SUBP EM HERNANDEZ MARISELA
240022875 SUBP EM HERNANDEZ MIRTHA
240035321 TC3S P5 HERNANDEZ MITZY 
240027503 TC1 CL HERNANDEZ SCOTT A
240027194 TC3S P5 HERNANDEZ TIFFANY
230221347 SUBP EM HEROD KENDRA
240031734 TC1 CL HILL MICHAEL J



240027016 TC1 CL HINOJOS GABRIEL M
240041874 SUBP EM HIPSKIND JOHN
240046140 SA13 EM HOPPER MADALYN
240030041 SA13 EM HOVER MARGUERITE R
240046230 TC3S P5 HURD BRANDY
240047497 SUBP EM IBARRA-CARLOS GESELL
240039991 TC2 CL INNIS LAURA A
240028230 TC2 CL JARAMILLO HEIDI L
240033765 SUBP EM JARVIS KAYLA M
240049487 TC2 CL JENSEN AMANDA
240029905 TC10 SL JERONIMO ISABEL 
240012514 TC3G CL JIMENEZ ABELINA
240032757 TC1 P5 JOHNSTONE GRACE E
240036463 SUBP EM JONES JORDAN C
240036637 TC2 CL JONES TRICIA M
240032573 SUBP EM JOSEFINA KAYLEE
240026878 TC1 CL JUNGWIRTH TINA R
240040277 TC1 CL KERSEY ROBERT C
240030496 SUBP EM KINDY LESLIE
240023498 TC1 IN KING JESSICA M
240037592 SUBP EM LAFAIRE APRIL R
240045179 SUBP EM LARO SAMANTHA A
240030300 TC3S CL LAUSTEN CLAUDE N
240044589 SUBP EM LAZCANO CRISTIAN A
240038150 SUBP EM LEAL ALYSSA
240039479 SUBP EM LEE BRANDON J
230140282 TC2 P5 LEMUS IBARRA MAYRA 
240041444 SUBP EM LEMUS LOPEZ SERGIO
240023246 SUBP EM LERMA ROBERT M
240041703 TC1 CL LESSLEY KACEY F
W24000281 SC5 WV LEZO GARCIA KEYLA M
200110055 TC3S CL LINDERO TANIA 
240045756 SUBP EM LITTMAN ANGELA
240026700 SUBP EM LOPEZ CESAR
240043722 SUBP EM LOPEZ GABRIELA
240026531 SUBP EM LOPEZ LEANNA
240038638 TC1 P5 LOPEZ MARIO
240028733 SUBP EM LOPEZ VANESSA C
240030972 TC2 P5 LORING SARAH
240044576 TC2 CL LURZ KEVIN K
210101881 TC1 CL LYONS ZACHARY
230259476 SC1A P5 MAASKE BLAKE
240024795 SUBP EM MACDONALD JOHN P



240022119 SUBP EM MAGANA BLANCA M
240044524 TC2 CL MARQUEZ ALEXSANDRIA L
240034845 TC1 CL MARQUEZ JENNIFER N
240025661 TC2 CL MARROQUIN JASON P
240036202 TC13 ML MARTIN DANIELA I
230135563 TC2 P5 MARTIN JAIDEN
240035777 TC2 CL MARTIN THOMAS E
240026650 SUBP EM MARTINEZ BERENICE
240030165 SC1A CL MARTINEZ MARCO A
240027984 SC5 CL MARTINEZ MARCO A
240033603 TC1 CL MC CAW JOHN H
240026779 TC3S CL MCDONALD-ANDERSON ASHLEY
240031317 TC3S P5 MCFARLAND LAUREN
240033643 SUBP EM MEADOWS JASON H
240033473 TC2 CL MEDEIROS MARTIN
240035794 SA13 EM MEDINA ROSA M
240033557 TC2 CL MELCHING JAMES A
240027654 SUBP EM MENDOZA CHANTAL
W24000469 SA17 WV MENDOZA JOSE A
240031336 TC3S P5 MERCADO-ALVAREZ NICHOLE G
230233447 TC2 P5 MEZA AMANDA
240023100 SC8 CL MIGUEL JENNIFER M
240024186 SUBP EM MILLAN OCHAETA XENA M
240041373 TC3G CL MILLER STEPHEN D
240041372 TC2 CL MILLER STEPHEN D
240038111 TC14 ML MINNICK ELIZABETH A
230289146 SC8 CL MITCHELL ZANDRA
240039955 TC3S CL MONREAL LARISSA N
240036744 TC14 SL MONREAL TREVOR
240034456 SUBP EM MONROE BRITTANY A
240045884 TC2 CL MONROY MARIBEL M
240035712 SC1A CL MONSIVAIZ YOLANDA
240022438 SA13 EM MORA KAYLA M
240042805 TC1 IN MORALES CYNTHIA
240035806 SUBP EM MORALES ESPINOZA ALICIA
230198207 TC1 P5 MORENO EDUARDO
240036817 TC13 ML MORENO EVELYN
240032244 SUBP EM MORENO OROZCO ERIKA
240041159 SUBP EM MORENO RUBEN
240044465 P12F CD MUNOZ NANCY G
240021679 TC2 CL MYERS DE ANN S
240035423 P12E CD NAVARRO ANA R
240025362 SUBP EM NEVAREZ SAMUEL L



240023190 TC1 CL NIBLEY CELESTE E
240041819 TPSL TL NICKELL EMILY
240026344 P12A CD NICKELL MADISON N
240047490 SUBP EM NOUFAL JIANA
240038026 SUBP EM NUNES ALEXANDER J
240025266 SUBP EM NUNES RYAN J
240022838 SUBP EM NUNEZ DEL PRADO TRICIA R
240047940 TC2 CL NUNEZ KATRINA
240023960 SUBP EM OCHOA GUILLERMINA
240030782 SUBP EM OCHOA LEON HEATHY Y
240038144 SUBP EM ONSTOTT CLAYTON
240046710 SUBP EM ONTIVEROS JASON
240024969 SC5 CL ORTIZ MARIA E
230156205 TC3A CL ORTIZ SAMANTHA
240025009 SUBP EM PADILLA-MUNOZ ALEJANDRO
240035532 TC1 P5 PALAFOX JOSHUA
240030803 TC13 SE PALOMINO PAULA
240034189 TC3S P5 PEEL CORTNEY M
240032066 SUBP EM PENA ASHLEY
240034349 SUBP EM PENA MELANIE
240025421 SUBP EM PEREZ CELESTE M
240036701 SUBT EM PEREZ LILLIAN
240044595 SUBP EM PEREZ MORALES JACQUELINE J
240033268 SUBP EM PEREZ RUGINA
240027815 SUBT EM PEREZ-CUEVAS GIOVANI J
240041277 TC1 CL PERKOVICH SARAH J
240028846 SUBP EM PETERS LOGAN
240030489 TC2 CL PEZZI MEGAN E
240026696 TC3S CL PILKINTON IV ALEXANDER
240028704 P12E CD PLACENCIA BRENDA
240028618 SUBP EM PLONEIS TOMMI R
240032457 SC1A CL POWELL JERIMICHA
240032455 TC1 CL POWELL JERIMICHA
240032456 TC2 CL POWELL JERIMICHA
240041052 SUBP EM PROULX ALYSSA
240036166 P12D CD QUEVEDO ANA M
240035601 SC8 P2 RAMIREZ JULISSA
240048586 SUBP EM RAMOS-BEDOLLA VENTURA
240024993 SC1A CL RASNER JONNA L
240028184 TC3S L2 RAYA CRISTINA L
240033139 SC1A CL REIMER JENNIFER A
240033138 TC1 CL REIMER JENNIFER A
240033140 TC3H CL REIMER JENNIFER A



240049027 SUBP EM RENTERIA MIKAYLA
240033233 TC1 CL REVELES JOEL G
240040950 TC2 CL REYNOLDS STEVEN L
240028648 SUBP EM RICHARDSON CIARRA
240039924 SUBP EM RICKS SHAUN
240052617 SUBP EM RIOS CRYSTAL
240047872 SUBP EM RIOS SARAH
240046956 SUBP EM RITA-BRAVO JESSICA
240029530 TC2 CL RIVERA JR. JESUS
240034250 TC1 CL ROBERTSON KAREN E
240034249 TC2 CL ROBERTSON KAREN E
240031395 CTE CL ROBINSON MICHAEL
240040647 SUBP EM ROBLES TENA YARELY
240031381 CTE CL RODGERS DAVID W
240027730 TC2 IN RODRIGUES MARISSA D
240047657 SC1A CL RODRIGUEZ CHRISTINA
240050995 P12E CD RODRIGUEZ DE MORA MA GUADALUPE
240035315 TC1 P5 RODRIGUEZ HERIBERTO J
240039145 SA13 EM RODRIGUEZ IRIS J
240030310 SUBP EM ROJAS BRITTANY
240023641 TC3S CL ROMERO MAYRA A
240037268 TC3G CL ROSALES IRENE M
240037267 TC2 CL ROSALES IRENE M
240021848 P12E CD ROSALES YOLANDA
240034695 SC5 CL ROSS SHARON
240034682 SUBP EM RUBIO ALEXUS M
240036158 SUBP EM RUIZ-VELASQUEZ YASMIN
240043092 TC2 P5 RYAN MONICA L
240039379 SUBP EM SALACUP WILFRED
240037234 SUBP EM SALINAS ELVIDA
240028176 TC3S L2 SALINAS ROBERT A
240029946 TC3S IN SANCHEZ LAURA
240046815 SUBP EM SANCHEZ SANTIAGO
240025800 SUBP EM SANCHEZ-MARTINEZ MARIA
240034071 TC1 IN SANDOVAL JULIO
240043826 TC1 CL SANDOVAL NOLBERTO
240035474 CTE CL SANTOYO CANDELARIA
240035579 TC3S P5 SAUCEDO-QUEVEDO MIRELLA
240024274 SUBP EM SCOTT HUBERT
240021562 TC2 CL SEARCY SYBIL J
240023728 CTE P3 SEPULVEDA ELIZABETH
240025310 SUBP EM SERPA JESSICA C
240038782 TC2 CL SHEAFF ERIN H



240030085 SC5 CL SHIN JONATHON W
240032721 TC4V CL SILL JAMES P
240036395 TC2 CL SILVA ROBIN L
240028695 SUBP EM SILVAS KENRICK W
240041033 P12C CD SIMMONDS PAIGE L
240029484 TC2 CL SIMOES ARLENE F
240029063 SC3A CL SMEE RONDA B
240038104 SUBP EM SMITH ALICIA D
240025677 SUBP EM SOUSA SAVANNAH L
230227391 SUBP EM SOUZA AUTUMN
240049301 CTE P5 SOUZA SABINA
240044018 TC2 CL SOZINHO SUSANNA M
240022718 SUBP EM SPECK KAYCEE N
240031391 TC3S P5 SPECK KAYCEE N
240034575 SC5 CL SPROLES SARAH J
240033112 SUBP EM STAFFORD AMANDA
240030032 SUBP EM STANDLEE MICHAEL
240007235 SUBP EM STEPHENS ALEECA
240029778 TC2 CL STEPHENS KINDRA L
240045744 CTE CL STEUART DEBBIE J
240039652 TC10 SL STIE JUSTIN A
240049759 SUBP EM STONE SANDY
240036523 CTE CL STYLES ROBERT A
240022228 SUBP EM TADROS SALLY
240043521 SUBT EM TAVAREZ MIKAYLA S
240044579 TC2 CL TAYLOR LESLEE B
240026417 TC2 CL TEJEDA JESUS
240041057 SUBP EM THOMPSON ADAM M
240033234 TC2 CL TIMMONS SHERRY J
240042998 SUBP EM TOVAR ALVAREZ CINTHYA C
240046754 SUBP EM TRAN YEN
240028258 SC1A CL TREVINO LETICIA
240028249 TC2 CL TREVINO LETICIA
240032821 SUBP EM TREVINO REGGIE
240037399 SUBP EM TRIPP TORI
240030762 SUBP EM TRUJILLO LILIANA
240025680 SUBP EM TSUBOI HAILEY
240036388 SUBP EM URIBE YADIRA J
240022655 P12E CD VALENZUELA MARIA I
240030115 SC1A CL VAN DUSEN TIFFANY L
240030114 TC2 CL VAN DUSEN TIFFANY L
240028234 SC1A CL VAN SCYOC LUCIA M
240028233 TC1 CL VAN SCYOC LUCIA M



240033182 TC2 CL VARDEMAN JULIE M
240034080 TC2 P5 VARGAS-ALVARADO ANABEL
240042517 SC1A CL VEISS VICTOR A
240042266 SC5 CL VEISS VICTOR A
240037528 SUBP EM VELASCO IVETTE
240023517 TC1 IN VENCES BRENDA
240036516 TC2 P5 VENEGAS LORENA L
240026665 TC2 CL VERKAIK JENNIFER M
240026664 SC1A CL VERKAIK JENNIFER M
240024983 SUBP EM VILLALPANDO-MARTINEZ BERENICE
240024272 SUBP EM VILLALTA JENNIFER
240035449 SUBP EM VILLARREAL GUADALUPE
240024920 SUBP EM WAINWRIGHT ASHLEY K
240025170 SUBP EM WAINWRIGHT NICHOLAS J
240028243 TC2 CL WALKER ROBIN R
240021437 SC3A P5 WALLIS MALLORY A
240033326 SC1A CL WATERS MICHAEL S
240033325 TC1 CL WATERS MICHAEL S
240043417 CTE CL WHITWORTH KENNETH W
240039798 SUBP EM WILLIAMS KELLY A
240025300 TC1 CL WILLIAMS MALLORIE
240032406 P12E CD WILLS KATHERINE M
240023147 SUBP EM WILSON LINDSEY N
240035417 TC1 CL WOOD JR. TERRY R
240047145 TC1 P5 XIONG KOU
240027355 P12E CD YATES SARAH O
240045465 SC1A CL YAVASILE MELISSA R
240033663 TC2 CL YODER JUDY M
240038371 SUBP EM YOTSOUBANH EMILY
240046795 TLA3 AL YOUNG LAWRENCE
240041603 TC14 SE YZAGUIRRE ROXANA
240033227 TC3S CL ZAVALA IRENE P
240045811 TC2 CL ZERLANG KELLIE L



Enclosure No. 3 
Agenda of 3/13/2024

APPROVAL OF TEMPORARY COUNTY CERTIFICATES

March 13, 2024

GALLEGOS AARON STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ ALPAUGH
LORING SARAH PRELIM: MULTIPLE SUBJ ALPAUGH
VANDER TUIG HEATHER TPSL: MULTIPLE SUBJ BUENA VISTA
CALVAC PEREZ FLORINDA CD SITE SUPERVISOR PERMIT CHILD CARE
PORRAS YVONNE CD MASTER TEACHER PERMIT CHILD CARE
QUEZADA DORA CD ASSOC TEACHER PERMIT CHILD CARE
MCCLUNG LINDA CLEAR M/M; M/S ED SPEC - RENEWAL CUTLER-OROSI
REED ANDREA ADDED SPECIALTY AREA: MMSN BRIDGE AUTHCUTLER-OROSI
GARCIA MICHELLE CD ASSOC TEACHER PERMIT EXETER
SPECK KAYCEE PRELIM M/M ED SPEC EXETER
CASTANON JENNIFER EMERG CLAD FARMERSVILLE
MAGALLANES MAYRA BIL WVR: SPANISH FARMERSVILLE
MEDINA ROSA EMERG CLAD FARMERSVILLE
BOLES JANICE CLEAR MULTIPLE SUBJ - RENEWAL LINDSAY
CONTRERAS STEPHANIE CLEAR MULTIPLE SUBJ - RENEWAL LINDSAY
DORADO LUIS EMERG CLAD PIXLEY
RODRIGUEZ IRIS EMERG CLAD PIXLEY
SANDOVAL JULIO INT: MUSIC PIXLEY
MARTINEZ NATALIE STSP: MUSIC PORTERVILLE
NAVARRO JOSE CLEAR ADMIN SVCS - RENEWAL PORTERVILLE
VARGAS KARINA STSP: MN ED SPEC PORTERVILLE
JENNINGS TIFFANY STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ STONE CORRAL 
CARRANZA GABRIELA STSP: ECSE ED SPEC TCOE
BEDOLLA GLORIA PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
BERMUDEZ-VARGAS ALEJANDRO EMERG 30-DAY SUB PERMIT - RENEWAL VARIOUS
CANTRELL KYLE PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
CASTELLANOS EDUARDO PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT - RENEWAL VARIOUS
CHAVEZ-BLANCO YESENIA PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
CHAVIRA SAUCEDO MARIA PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
CORTEZ AMANDA PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
GUZMAN GARCIA ADAN PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
HEUSDENS DOUGLAS EMERG 30-DAY SUB PERMIT - RENEWAL VARIOUS
JONES DAVONTE PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
LEDESMA KATHERIN PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS



MANZANO NAOMI PRELIM SCHOOL NURSE VARIOUS
MARTINEZ NATALIE PRELIM MULTIPLE SUBJ VARIOUS
MENDEZ VANESSA PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT - RENEWAL VARIOUS
NUNES ALEXANDER EMERG 30-DAY SUB PERMIT - RENEWAL VARIOUS
SERVIN MARIAJOSE PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
TAPIA MALDONADO GIOVANNI PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT - RENEWAL VARIOUS
TORRES CHELSI PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
URBINA ISLA PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS
VERDUZCO ANNA PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT - RENEWAL VARIOUS
FLORES STEPHANIE PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS 
GONZALEZ IBARRA ANALI PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS 
GUTIERREZ AUSTIN EMERG 30-DAY SUB PERMIT VARIOUS 
GUTIERREZ BERENICE PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS 
GUTIERREZ OSCAR PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS 
HEATH KARYN PRELIM SS: SPANISH VARIOUS 
HERNANDEZ MARTINEZ CARLOS PROSPECTIVE SUB PERMIT VARIOUS 
AVILA ERLINDA CLEAR M/M ED SPEC - RENEWAL VISALIA
CHAVEZ ALYSSA PRELIM ADMIN SVCS VISALIA
DE PONTE LAUREL EMERG CLAD - REST CHNG VISALIA
PRADO AMANDA CLEAR MULTIPLE SUBJ - RENEWAL VISALIA
VILLEGAS EDGAR STSP: PE VISALIA
XIONG KOU PRELIM SS: PE VISALIA
GIBSON ANNA CLEAR CLAD VISALIA 
HUGHES CALLIE STSP: ENGLISH VISALIA 
PEREZ LISA CCSD WVR WOODLAKE
RODRIGUEZ HERIBERTO PRELIM SS: MATH WOODLAKE



Enclosure No 4. 
Agenda of 3/13/2024 

APPROVAL OF EMERGENCY PERMITS 
FOR FULL-TIME EMPLOYMENT 

March 13, 2024 
Emergency Permits: Online 
Recommendations 
EMERG CLAD PIXLEY DORADO LUIS 
EMERG CLAD PIXLEY RODRIGUEZ IRIS 
STSP: ENGLISH  VISALIA  HUGHES CALLIE  
STSP: MN ED SPEC PORTERVILLE VARGAS KARINA 
STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ ALPAUGH GALLEGOS AARON 
STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ STONE CORRAL JENNINGS TIFFANY  
STSP: MULTIPLE SUBJ SUNDALE PILGRIM, CARA 
STSP: MUSIC PORTERVILLE MARTINEZ NATALIE 
STSP: PE VISALIA VILLEGAS EDGAR 

Emergency Permits: Mailed 
EMERG CLAD - REST CHNG VISALIA DE PONTE, LAUREL 





Page 1 of 10 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board Bylaw 
 

Bylaws of the Board 

BB 9320 

Meetings and Notices 

 

Meetings and Notices 

 

The County Board of Education shall hold regular meetings according to a schedule adopted by the Board 

at the organization meeting.  

The Board shall adopt a yearly calendar specifying the date, time and place of each regular meeting. A 

Board meeting exists whenever a majority of its members gather at the same time and place to hear, discuss 

or deliberate upon any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. [Government Code Section 

54952.2] 

The notice of all regular and special meetings of the Board shall contain the meeting time, place and a 

brief description of each business item to be transacted or discussed.  Only those items of business listed 

in the notice shall be considered at a meeting, except as authorized by Government Code Section 54954.2. 

All meetings Meetings of the Tulare County Board of Education, except closed sessions, shall be open to 

the public. are conducted for the purpose of accomplishing County Board business. In accordance with 

state open meeting laws (Brown Act), the County Board shall hold its meetings in public and shall conduct 

closed sessions during these such meetings only to discuss confidential matters specified in as authorized 

by law. To encourage community involvement in the schools, County Board meetings shall provide 

opportunities for questions and comments by members of the public. and shall be conducted in accordance 

with law and Board-adopted bylaws. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with law and the 

County Board's bylaws, policies, and administrative regulations. 

A County Board meeting exists whenever a majority of County Board members gather at the same time 

and location, including teleconference location as permitted by Government Code 54953, to hear, discuss, 

deliberate, or take action upon any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board. 

[Government Code 54952.2] 

Direct communication, personal intermediaries and technological devices shall not be used by a majority 

of Board members to develop a collective concurrence as to an action that members will take on any item 

of Board or Tulare County Office of Education business. [Government Code Section 54952.2] 

A majority of the County Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of 

communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, including social media and other 

electronic communications, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject 

matter jurisdiction of the County Board. [Government Code 54952.2] 

 

However, the County Superintendent of Schools or a Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

employee or official may engage in separate conversations or communications with County Board 

members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item within the subject matter 



Page 2 of 10 

jurisdiction of the County Board, as long as that person does not communicate the comments or position 

of any County Board members to other County Board members. [Government Code 54952.2] 

 

Meetings shall be held within Board boundaries, except when otherwise allowed by law. [Government 

Code Section 54954] 

Meetings shall be held in a facility that is accessible to all persons, including disabled persons, without 

charge. [Government Code Section 54961] 

In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at County Board meetings, 

appropriate disability-related accommodations or modifications shall be provided upon request in 

accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Any doubt about a request for accommodation shall 

be resolved in favor of accessibility. [Government Code 54953, 54953.2, 54954.1, 54954.2] 

 

Notice of the procedure for receiving and resolving requests for accommodation described above shall be 

given in each instance in which notice of the time of a meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the 

meeting is otherwise posted. [Government Code 54953] 

 

Regular Meetings 

 

The County Board shall hold one (1) regular meetings each month. Regular meetings shall be held at 3:00 

p.m. on the second Wednesday of each month in the Board Room of the County Education Building in 

Tulare County Office of Education Administration & Conference Center, 6200 South Mooney Boulevard, 

Visalia. With Board approval, regular meetings may be scheduled at various sites throughout the County 

where the Office of Education operates programs or classes. 

 

At least seventy-two (72) hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted in the County 

Education Building in at one or more locations freely accessible to members of the public, and on TCOE's 

web site. [Government Code 54954.2]  

 

Every agenda for regular meetings shall provide for an opportunity for members of the public to directly 

address the Board on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 

Board, provided that no action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 

otherwise authorized by Government Code Section 54954.2 (b). The agenda shall provide members of the 

public the opportunity to address the Board on any item before or during the Board’s consideration of the 

item. 

 

Upon request, the local media shall be mailed the annual calendar of regular Board meetings. Any changes 

to the calendar shall be mailed prior to the meeting. 

 

Special Meetings (Non-emergency) 

 

Special meetings of the County Board may be called by collaboration with the County Superintendent and 

the President or a majority of the Board members [Government Code Section 54956] whenever necessary. 

the County Board President when exigencies require them to be held, or whenever any three members of 

the County Board make a written request for such a meeting. However, a special meeting shall not be 

called regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation of the County Superintendent.  

[Education Code 1012; Government Code 54956]  All members of the County Board of Education and 

the local media who have requested notice, shall be notified, by written notice delivered to them personally 

or by any other means at least 24 hours in advance of the special meeting, and the purpose or purposes for 

which it is called. Notices of special meetings may be delivered electronically including via e-mail or 



Page 3 of 10 

facsimile. The notice shall also be posted at least 24 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible 

to the public and shall be posted on TCOE's web site. The notice shall specify the time and location of the 

meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No other business shall be considered at this 

meeting. [Government Code 54956] 

 

An agenda shall be prepared as specified for regular County Board of Education meetings and shall be 

delivered with the notice of the special meeting to Board members, together with supporting documents, 

if any.  The agenda shall be posted at least 24 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to 

the public. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and business to be transacted or 

discussed. 

 

Any County Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the 

meeting by filing a written waiver of notice with the secretary of the County Board or by being present at 

the meeting at the time it convenes. [Government Code 54956] 

 

Only those items of business listed in the agenda for the special meeting shall be considered at that special 

meeting. Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to 

directly address the County Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice, 

before or after during the items are considered. consideration. [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

Special Meetings (Emergency) Emergency Meetings 

 

In the case where of an emergency situation is determined to exist by a majority vote of Board members 

present at the meeting involving matters upon for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption 

or threatened disruption of public facilities, the County Board of Education may hold a special an 

emergency meeting without complying with the 24-hour notice and/or 24-hour posting requirement of for 

special meetings pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.  The County Board shall comply with all 

other requirements for special meetings during an emergency meeting. [Government Code 54956.5]  

 

An emergency situation means any either of the following: 

 

1. An emergency, which shall be defined as a A work stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity 

which severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as determined by a majority of the members of 

the cCounty Board. 

 

2. A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a A crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist act, or 

threatened terrorist activity that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring the County 

Board to provide one- hour notice before holding an emergency meeting may endanger the which 

severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as determined by a majority of the members of the 

County Board of Education. 

 

Each local newspaper of general circulation and radio or television station which has requested notice of 

special meetings shall be notified by the President of the County Board or the President's designee, one 

hour prior to the special meeting. Except in the case of a dire emergency, the County Board President or 

designee shall give notice of the emergency meeting by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to 

the local media that have requested notice of special meetings. All telephone numbers provided by the 

media in the most recent request for notification shall be exhausted.  In the event that If telephone services 

are not functioning, the notice requirement of one hour is waived, and but the County Board or its designee 

shall notify, as soon after the meeting as possible, such newspapers, radio stations, or television stations 

those media representatives of the holding of the meeting, and shall describe the purpose of the meeting 



Page 4 of 10 

and of any action taken by the County Board. In the case of a dire emergency, the County Board president 

or designee shall give such notice at or near the time notification is given to the other County Board 

members about the meeting.  [Government Code 54956.5] 

 

No closed session may be held during an emergency special meeting, and all other rules governing special 

meetings shall be observed with the exception of the 24-hour notice.  

 

The minutes of the meeting, a list of persons the President or designee notified or attempted to notify, a 

copy of the roll-call vote, and any actions taken at such meeting shall be posted for a minimum of 10 days 

in a public place as soon after the meeting as possible. [Government Code 54956.5] 

 

Adjourned/Continued Meetings 
 

A majority vote by the County Board of Education may adjourn any meeting at any place in the agenda, 

if less than a quorum of the Board is present, those Board members may adjourn any meeting, to a later 

time and place which shall be specified in the order of adjournment.  

 

If no members are present at any regular or adjourned regular meeting, the secretary may declare the 

meeting adjourned to a later time and shall give notice in the same manner required for special meetings. 

 

The County Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and location that 

shall be specified in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum of the County Board may adjourn such 

a meeting. If no County Board members are present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the meeting 

adjourned to a later time and place and shall give notice in the same manner required for special meetings. 

[Government Code 54955] 

 

Within 24 hours, after a meeting has been adjourned to a later time, a copy of the order or notice of 

adjournment shall be posted at the meeting site. [Government Code 54955] 

 

Study Sessions, Retreats, Public Forums, and Discussion Meetings 

 

The County Board may convene a study session or public forum to study an issue in more detail or to 

receive information from staff or feedback from the public. 

 

The County Board may also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to discuss County Board roles and 

relationships. 

 

Public notice shall be given in accordance with law when a quorum of the County Board is attending a 

study session, retreat, public forum, or discussion meeting. All such meetings shall comply with the Brown 

Act. 

 

Traditional Teleconferencing 

 

A teleconference is a meeting of the County Board in which County Board members are in different 

locations, connected by electronic means through audio and/or video. [Government Code 54953] 

 

The County Board may use teleconferences for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the 

Board’s subject matter jurisdiction. All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call. 

[Government Code 54953] 



Page 5 of 10 

During the teleconferenced meeting, at least a quorum of the members of the County Board members shall 

participate from locations within the boundaries of the Board County. [Government Code 54953] 

All teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional 

rights of the parties or the public appearing before the County Board, including the right of the public to 

address the County Board directly at each teleconference location. [Government Code 54953] 

The teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of the Brown Act and all 

otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or proceeding. [Government 

Code 54953]  

All Board policies, administrative regulations and bylaws shall apply equally to meetings that are 

teleconferenced.  The County Superintendent or designee shall facilitate public participation in the 

meeting at each teleconference location. 

 

Unless a Board member participates by teleconference pursuant to the provisions described in the sections 

"Teleconferencing During a Personal Emergency," "Teleconferencing For ‘Just Cause’," or 

"Teleconferencing During a Proclaimed State of Emergency" below, Agendas agendas shall be posted at 

all teleconference locations and shall list all teleconference locations whenever they are posted elsewhere. 

[Government Code 54953] 

 

All teleconference locations shall be accessible to the public and the public shall have the right to address 

the County Board directly at each teleconference location. Additional teleconference locations may be 

provided to the public. [Government Code 54953] 

 

Teleconferencing During a Personal Emergency 
 

Until January 1, 2026, with approval from the majority of the County Board, a County Board member 

may be permitted to participate in a meeting remotely when a physical or family medical emergency 

prevents the County Board member from attending in person. The County Board member requesting to 

appear remotely shall notify the County Board of the emergency situation as soon as possible and provide 

a concise general description of the circumstances relating to the County Board member's need to appear 

remotely. The County Board member shall not be required to disclose any disability, medical diagnosis, 

or personal medical information exempt under existing law. [Government Code 54953] 

 

A County Board member may not appear remotely under emergency circumstances for more than 20 

percent of the County Board's regular meetings or for more than three consecutive months.    

[Government Code 54953] 

 

When a County Board member is approved to participate remotely due to emergency circumstances, the 

County Board member is not required to participate from a location which is accessible to the public and 

the location does not need to be identified on the agenda. [Government Code 54953] 

 

If permitted to participate remotely, the County Board member shall utilize both audio and visual 

technology and publicly disclose, before any action is taken, whether any other individuals 18 years or 

older are present in the remote location with the Board member, and the general nature of the Board 

member's relationship with such individuals. [Government Code 54953] 

 

TCOE shall also provide public access to the meeting via a two-way audiovisual platform or a two-way 

audio service and a live webcast, with public comment being allowed via the remote platform as well as 

in person and the public shall be able to offer comments in real time. The agenda shall include information 



Page 6 of 10 

describing how members of the public can access the platform. [Government Code 54953] 

 

If a disruption prevents broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or 

internet-based service option, or a disruption that is within the County Board's control prevents members 

of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based service option, the 

County Board shall not take action on agenda items until public access to the meeting is restored.  

[Government Code 54953] 

 

Teleconferencing for "Just Cause" 

A County Board member may be permitted to appear remotely, pursuant to the provisions below, for just 

cause for no more than two meetings per calendar year. A County Board member appearing for just cause 

shall notify the County Board at the earliest possible opportunity of the need to participate in the meeting 

remotely, including at the start of a regular meeting. [Government Code 54953] 

 

Just Cause may exist for any of the following: [Government Code 54953] 

 

1. A childcare or caregiving need of a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or domestic 

partner that requires a County Board member to participate remotely 

 

2. A contagious illness prevents a County Board member from attending in person 

 

3. A County Board member has a need related to a physical or mental disability not otherwise 

reasonably accommodated 

 

4. A County Board member is traveling while on official business of the County Board or another state 

or local agency 

 

When a County Board member participates remotely for just cause, the County Board member is not 

required to participate from a location which is accessible to the public and the location does not need to 

be identified on the agenda. [Government Code 54953] 

 

If the County Board member participates remotely, the County Board member shall utilize both audio and 

visual technology and publicly disclose, before any action is taken, whether any other individuals 18 years 

or older are present in the remote location with the County Board member, and the general nature of the 

Board member's relationship with such individuals. [Government Code 54953] 

 

TCOE shall also provide public access to the meeting via a two-way audiovisual platform or a two-way 

audio service and a live webcast, with public comment being allowed via the remote platform as well as 

in person and the public shall be able to offer comments in real time. The agenda shall include 

information describing how members of the public can access the platform. [Government Code 54953] 

 

If a disruption prevents broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or 

internet-based service option, or a disruption that is within the County Board's control prevents members 

of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based service option, the  

County Board shall not take action on agenda items until public access to the meeting is restored.  

[Government Code 54953] 

 

 

 

 



Page 7 of 10 

Teleconferencing During a Proclaimed State of Emergency 
 

The County Board may conduct board meetings by teleconference without posting agendas at all 

teleconference locations, identifying teleconference locations in meeting notices and agendas, allowing 

public access to each teleconference location, providing an opportunity for members of the public to 

address the County Board directly at each teleconference location, and ensuring that at least a quorum of 

the County Board participate from locations within TCOE boundaries, during a proclaimed state of 

emergency pursuant to Government Code 8625-8629 in any of the following circumstances: [Government 

Code 54953] 

1. The County Board holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose of 

determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency meeting in person would 

present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees 

 

2. The County Board holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has determined, by 

majority vote as described in Item #1 above, that as a result of the emergency meeting in person 

would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees 

To conduct a teleconference meeting for these purposes, the following requirements shall be satisfied: 

[Government Code 54953] 

1. The notice and agenda shall be as given and posted as otherwise required by the Brown Act 

 

2. The notice and agenda of the meeting shall specify the means by which members of the public may 

access the meeting and offer public comments, including via a call-in or internet-based service 

option 

 

Members of the public may be required to register to log in to a meeting when making public 

comments through an internet web site or other online platform that is operated by a third-party and 

not under the control of the County Board. 

 

3. Members of the public shall be allowed to access the meeting, and the agenda shall provide an 

opportunity for members of the public to address the County Board directly pursuant to Government 

Code 54954.3 

 

4. Members of the public shall not be required to submit public comments in advance of a County 

Board meeting and shall be provided an opportunity to address the County Board and offer 

comments in real time 

 

5. Public comment periods shall not be closed until the timed public comment period, if such is offered 

by the County Board, has elapsed or, if not timed, until a reasonable amount of time per agenda item 

has been allowed 

 

6. If during a County Board meeting a disruption occurs which prevents TCOE from broadcasting the 

meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, or in the 

event of a disruption within the County Board's control that prevents members of the public from 

offering public comments, the County Board shall take no further action on any agenda item until 

public access via the call-in or internet-based service option to the meeting is restored 



Page 8 of 10 

The County Board may, in its discretion, provide a physical location from which the public may attend 

or comment. [Government Code 54953] 

 

The County Board may continue to conduct meetings by teleconference, as specified above for 

teleconferencing during proclaimed states of emergency, by a majority vote finding within 45 days after 

teleconferencing for the first time, and every 45 days thereafter, that either: [Government Code 54953]  

1. The County Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency 

 

2. The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the County Board to meet safely in 

person 

Hearings 

 

The County Board may occasionally convene public hearings. Such hearings are held solely to allow the 

Board and members of the public to receive information.  

 

If a quorum of Board members is present at a hearing, notice of the hearing shall be provided according 

to procedures specified above for regular meetings.  

 

Other Gatherings 
 

Attendance by a majority of County Board members at any of the following events is not subject to state 

open meeting laws provided that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific district County 

Board business among themselves other than as part of the scheduled program: [Government Code 

54952.2]  

1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of 

general interest to the public or to school Boards County Board members. 

 

2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the Tulare County 

Office of Education TCOE to address a topic of local community concern. 

 

3. An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency. 

 

4. A purely social or ceremonial occasion. 

 

5. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the County Board, provided that the 

County Board members who are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers. 

6. An open and noticed meeting of another body of TCOE. 

Individual contacts or conversations between a County Board member and any other person are not subject 

to the Brown Act.  [Government Code 54952.2] 

 

Annual Organizational Meeting 

The County Board of Education shall organize at a meeting held in each year by electing one of its number 

President of the Board.  The meeting at which the organization is conducted shall be the first meeting on 

or after the last Friday in November.  At this meeting the Board shall develop a schedule of regular 

meetings for the year. 



Page 9 of 10 

 

Board members, before entering office, shall take and subscribe to the oath or affirmation set forth in 

Section 3 of Article XX of the Constitution of California. 

 

Meetings Outside District Boundaries Location of Meetings 

 

Meetings shall not be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of ancestry 

or any characteristic listed in Government Code 11135. In addition, meetings shall not be held in a facility 

which is inaccessible to individuals with disabilities or where members of the public must make a payment 

or purchase in order to be admitted.  [Government Code 54961] 

 

Board meetings may be held outside Tulare County Office of Education boundaries only under one or 

more of the following circumstances  Meetings shall be held within TCOE boundaries, except to do any 

of the following: [Government Code 54954] 

 

1. When necessary to comply with state or federal law or court order or to attend a judicial or 

administrative proceeding to which the Board or Tulare County Office of Education is a party. 

 

2. To inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the boundaries of the 

Board County, provided that the topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the 

property. 

 

3. To participate in meetings or discussions of multi-agency significance, provided these meetings are 

held within one of the other agencies’ boundaries, with all participating agencies giving the notice 

required by law. 

 

4. To meet in the closest meeting facility if the Tulare County Office of Education has no meeting 

facility within the Board’s boundaries.  

 

5. To meet with state or federal officials when a local meeting would be impractical, solely to discuss 

legislative or regulatory issues affecting the Board or Tulare County Office of Education over which 

the state or federal officials have jurisdiction. 

 

6. To meet outside the Board’s immediate jurisdiction in or near a facility owned by the Tulare County 

Office of Education provided the meeting is limited to items directly related to that facility. 

 

7. Visit the office of legal counsel of the Board or of the Tulare County Office of Education for a 

closed session on pending litigation held pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 when to do 

so would reduce legal fees or costs. 

Meetings exempted from the boundary requirements, as specified in Items #1-7 above, shall still be 

subject to the notice and open meeting requirements for regular and special meetings when a quorum of 

the County Board attends the meeting. 

 

If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the regular meeting location unsafe, meetings shall 

be held for the duration of the emergency at a place designated by the County Board president or designee, 

who shall so inform all news media who have requested notice of special meetings by the most rapid 

available means of communication. [Government Code 54954] 

 

 



Page 10 of 10 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

1009 –Annual organization of Board 

1011 –Regular meetings  

1012 –Special Meetings 

1013 –Quorum 

1016 –Permitted proceedings at special meetings 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

3511.1 –Local agency executives 

11135 –Unlawful discrimination 

54950 – 54957.9 – Meetings  54950-54963 –The Ralph M. Brown Act 

54953 –Meetings to be open and public; attendance teleconferencing 

54954 –Time and place of regular meetings; holidays; emergencies 

54954.2 –Agenda posting requirements; board actions 

54955 –Adjournment; adjourned meetings 

54956 –Special Meetings; call; notice 

54956.5 – Special meeting in emergency situation Emergency meetings 

7920.000-7930.170 –California Public Records Act 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28  

35.160 –Effective communications 

36.303 –Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability; public accommodations; auxiliary aids and services 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

42 USC 12101-12213 –Americans with Disabilities Act 

COURT DECISIONS 

Wolfe v. City of Fremont (2006) 144 Cal.App. 4th 533 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (2005) 

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 30 (2001) 

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2001) 

79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 69 (1996) 

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995) 

 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATION  

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014 

INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATION  

The ABCs of Open Government Laws 

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATION  

Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, 2nd Ed., 2010 

 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Attorney General's Office: http://www/ag/ca/gov 

Institute for Local Government: http://www.ca-ilg.org 

League of California Cities: http://www.cacities.org 

 

Bylaw adopted: 11/19/1980     Tulare County Board of Education  

by the Board: 11/19/80     Visalia, CA California 

Revised:   10/7/1987, 1/13/1999, __/__/2024 

Revised:  1/13/99 

http://www.csba.org/


 

Page 1 of 9 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board Bylaw 

 

Bylaws of the Board 

BB 9320 

Meetings and Notices 

 

Meetings and Notices 

 

Meetings of the Tulare County Board of Education are conducted for the purpose of accomplishing County 

Board business. In accordance with state open meeting laws (Brown Act), the County Board shall hold its 

meetings in public and shall conduct closed sessions during such meetings only as authorized by law. To 

encourage community involvement in the schools, County Board meetings shall provide opportunities for 

questions and comments by members of the public. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with 

law and the County Board's bylaws, policies, and administrative regulations. 

 

A County Board meeting exists whenever a majority of County Board members gather at the same time 

and location, including teleconference location as permitted by Government Code 54953, to hear, discuss, 

deliberate, or take action upon any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board. 

[Government Code 54952.2] 

A majority of the County Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of 

communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, including social media and other 

electronic communications, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject 

matter jurisdiction of the County Board. [Government Code 54952.2] 

 

However, the County Superintendent of Schools or a Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) 

employee or official may engage in separate conversations or communications with County Board 

members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the County Board, as long as that person does not communicate the comments or position 

of any County Board members to other County Board members. [Government Code 54952.2] 

 

In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at County Board meetings, 

appropriate disability-related accommodations or modifications shall be provided upon request in 

accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Any doubt about a request for accommodation shall 

be resolved in favor of accessibility. [Government Code 54953, 54953.2, 54954.1, 54954.2] 

 

Notice of the procedure for receiving and resolving requests for accommodation described above shall be 

given in each instance in which notice of the time of a meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the 

meeting is otherwise posted. [Government Code 54953] 

 

Regular Meetings 

 

The County Board shall hold one (1) regular meeting each month. Regular meetings shall be held at 3:00 

p.m. on the second Wednesday of each month in the Tulare County Office of Education Administration 

& Conference Center, 6200 South Mooney Boulevard, Visalia. With Board approval, regular meetings 



 

Page 2 of 9 

may be scheduled at various sites throughout the county where the Office of Education operates programs 

or classes. 

 

At least seventy-two (72) hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more 

locations freely accessible to members of the public, and on TCOE's web site. [Government Code 

54954.2]  

 

Upon request, the local media shall be mailed the annual calendar of regular Board meetings.  

 

Special Meetings 

 

Special meetings of the County Board may be called by the County Board President when exigencies 

require them to be held, or whenever any three members of the County Board make a written request for 

such a meeting. However, a special meeting shall not be called regarding the salary, salary schedule, or 

other compensation of the County Superintendent.  [Education Code 1012; Government Code 54956]  All 

members of the County Board of Education and the local media who have requested notice, shall be 

notified, by written notice delivered to them personally or by any other means at least 24 hours in advance 

of the special meeting, and the purpose or purposes for which it is called. Notices of special meetings may 

be delivered electronically including via e-mail or facsimile. The notice shall also be posted at least 24 

hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the public and shall be posted on TCOE's web 

site. The notice shall specify the time and location of the meeting and the business to be transacted or 

discussed. No other business shall be considered at this meeting. [Government Code 54956] 

 

Any County Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the 

meeting by filing a written waiver of notice with the secretary of the County Board or by being present at 

the meeting at the time it convenes. [Government Code 54956] 

 

Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly 

address the County Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice, before or 

during the items consideration. [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

Emergency Meetings 

 

In the case of an emergency for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened 

disruption of public facilities, the County Board of Education may hold an emergency meeting without 

complying with the 24-hour notice and/or 24-hour posting requirement for special meetings pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54956.  The County Board shall comply with all other requirements for special 

meetings during an emergency meeting. [Government Code 54956.5]  

 

An emergency situation means either of the following: 

 

1. An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity which 

severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as determined by a majority of the members of the 

County Board. 

 

2. A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist act, or 

threatened terrorist activity that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring the County 

Board to provide one- hour notice before holding an emergency meeting may endanger the public 

health, safety, or both, as determined by a majority of the members of the County Board. 



 

Page 3 of 9 

Except in the case of a dire emergency, the County Board President or designee shall give notice of the 

emergency meeting by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to the local media that have 

requested notice of special meetings. All telephone numbers provided by the media in the most recent 

request for notification shall be exhausted. If telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirement 

of one hour is waived and the County Board or its designee shall notify, as soon after the meeting as 

possible, those media representatives of the meeting, and shall describe the purpose of the meeting and 

any action taken by the County Board. In the case of a dire emergency, the County Board president or 

designee shall give such notice at or near the time notification is given to the other County Board members 

about the meeting. [Government Code 54956.5] 

 

The minutes of the meeting, a list of persons the President or designee notified or attempted to notify, a 

copy of the roll-call vote, and any actions taken at such meeting shall be posted for a minimum of 10 days 

in a public place as soon after the meeting as possible. [Government Code 54956.5] 

 

Adjourned/Continued Meetings 
 

The County Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and location that 

shall be specified in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum of the County Board may adjourn such 

a meeting. If no County Board members are present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the meeting 

adjourned to a later time and place and shall give notice in the same manner required for special meetings.  

[Government Code 54955] 

 

Within 24 hours, after a meeting has been adjourned to a later time, a copy of the order or notice of 

adjournment shall be posted at the meeting site. [Government Code 54955] 

 

Study Sessions, Retreats, Public Forums, and Discussion Meetings 

 

The County Board may convene a study session or public forum to study an issue in more detail or to 

receive information from staff or feedback from the public. 

 

The County Board may also convene a retreat or discussion meeting to discuss County Board roles and 

relationships. 

 

Public notice shall be given in accordance with law when a quorum of the County Board is attending a 

study session, retreat, public forum, or discussion meeting. All such meetings shall comply with the Brown 

Act. 

 

Traditional Teleconferencing 

 

A teleconference is a meeting of the County Board in which County Board members are in different 

locations, connected by electronic means through audio and/or video. [Government Code 54953] 

 

The County Board may use teleconferences for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the 

Board’s subject matter jurisdiction. All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call. 

[Government Code 54953] 

During the teleconferenced meeting, at least a quorum of the County Board members shall participate 

from locations within the boundaries of the County. [Government Code 54953] 



 

Page 4 of 9 

All teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional 

rights of the parties or the public appearing before the County Board, including the right of the public to 

address the County Board directly at each teleconference location. [Government Code 54953] 

 

The teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of the Brown Act and all 

otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or proceeding. [Government 

Code 54953]  

 

Unless a Board member participates by teleconference pursuant to the provisions described in the sections 

"Teleconferencing During a Personal Emergency," "Teleconferencing For ‘Just Cause’," or 

"Teleconferencing During a Proclaimed State of Emergency," below, agendas shall be posted at all 

teleconference locations and shall list all teleconference locations whenever they are posted elsewhere. 

[Government Code 54953] 

 

All teleconference locations shall be accessible to the public and the public shall have the right to address 

the County Board directly at each teleconference location. Additional teleconference locations may be 

provided to the public. [Government Code 54953] 

 

Teleconferencing During a Personal Emergency 
 

Until January 1, 2026, with approval from the majority of the County Board, a County Board member 

may be permitted to participate in a meeting remotely when a physical or family medical emergency 

prevents the County Board member from attending in person. The County Board member requesting to 

appear remotely shall notify the County Board of the emergency situation as soon as possible and provide 

a concise general description of the circumstances relating to the County Board member's need to appear 

remotely. The County Board member shall not be required to disclose any disability, medical diagnosis, 

or personal medical information exempt under existing law. [Government Code 54953] 

 

A County Board member may not appear remotely under emergency circumstances for more than 20 

percent of the County Board's regular meetings or for more than three consecutive months.  

[Government Code 54953] 

 

When a County Board member is approved to participate remotely due to emergency circumstances, the 

County Board member is not required to participate from a location which is accessible to the public and 

the location does not need to be identified on the agenda. [Government Code 54953] 

 

If permitted to participate remotely, the County Board member shall utilize both audio and visual 

technology and publicly disclose, before any action is taken, whether any other individuals 18 years or 

older are present in the remote location with the County Board member, and the general nature of the  

Board member's relationship with such individuals. [Government Code 54953] 

 

TCOE shall also provide public access to the meeting via a two-way audiovisual platform or a two-way 

audio service and a live webcast, with public comment being allowed via the remote platform as well as 

in person and the public shall be able to offer comments in real time. The agenda shall include information 

describing how members of the public can access the platform. [Government Code 54953] 

 

If a disruption prevents broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or 

internet-based service option, or a disruption that is within the County Board's control prevents members 

of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based service option, the  

 



 

Page 5 of 9 

County Board shall not take action on agenda items until public access to the meeting is restored.  

[Government Code 54953] 

 

Teleconferencing for "Just Cause” 

 

A County Board member may be permitted to appear remotely, pursuant to the provisions below, for just 

cause for no more than two meetings per calendar year. A County Board member appearing for just cause 

shall notify the County Board at the earliest possible opportunity of the need to participate in the meeting  

remotely, including at the start of a regular meeting. [Government Code 54953] 

 

Just Cause may exist for any of the following: [Government Code 54953] 

 

1. A childcare or caregiving need of a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or 

domestic partner that requires a County Board member to participate remotely 

 

2. A contagious illness prevents a County Board member from attending in person 

 

3. A County Board member has a need related to a physical or mental disability not otherwise 

reasonably accommodated 

 

4. A County Board member is traveling while on official business of the County Board or another state 

or local agency 

 

When a County Board member participates remotely for just cause, the County Board member is not 

required to participate from a location which is accessible to the public and the location does not need to  

be identified on the agenda. [Government Code 54953] 

 

If the County Board member participates remotely, the County Board member shall utilize both audio and 

visual technology and publicly disclose, before any action is taken, whether any other individuals 18 years 

or older are present in the remote location with the County Board member, and the general nature of the 

Board member's relationship with such individuals. [Government Code 54953] 

 

TCOE shall also provide public access to the meeting via a two-way audiovisual platform or a two-way 

audio service and a live webcast, with public comment being allowed via the remote platform as well as 

in person and the public shall be able to offer comments in real time. The agenda shall include information 

describing how members of the public can access the platform. [Government Code 54953] 

 

If a disruption prevents broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or 

internet-based service option, or a disruption that is within the County Board's control prevents members 

of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based service option, the  

County Board shall not take action on agenda items until public access to the meeting is restored.  

[Government Code 54953] 

 

Teleconferencing During a Proclaimed State of Emergency 
 

The County Board may conduct board meetings by teleconference without posting agendas at all 

teleconference locations, identifying teleconference locations in meeting notices and agendas, allowing 

public access to each teleconference location, providing an opportunity for members of the public to 

address the County Board directly at each teleconference location, and ensuring that at least a quorum of 

the County Board participate from locations within TCOE boundaries, during a proclaimed state of 



 

Page 6 of 9 

emergency pursuant to Government Code 8625-8629 in any of the following circumstances: [Government 

Code 54953] 

1. The County Board holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose of 

determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency meeting in person would present 

imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees 

 

2. The County Board holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has determined, by 

majority vote as described in Item #1 above, that as a result of the emergency meeting in person would 

present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees 

To conduct a teleconference meeting for these purposes, the following requirements shall be satisfied: 

[Government Code 54953] 

1. The notice and agenda shall be as given and posted as otherwise required by the Brown Act 

 

2. The notice and agenda of the meeting shall specify the means by which members of the public may 

access the meeting and offer public comments, including via a call-in or internet-based service option 

 

Members of the public may be required to register to log in to a meeting when making public 

comments through an internet web site or other online platform that is operated by a third-party and 

not under the control of the County Board. 

 

3. Members of the public shall be allowed to access the meeting, and the agenda shall provide an 

opportunity for members of the public to address the County Board directly pursuant to Government 

Code 54954.3 

4. Members of the public shall not be required to submit public comments in advance of a County Board 

meeting and shall be provided an opportunity to address the County Board and offer comments in real 

time 

5. Public comment periods shall not be closed until the timed public comment period, if such is offered 

by the County Board, has elapsed or, if not timed, until a reasonable amount of time per agenda item 

has been allowed 

6. If during a County Board meeting a disruption occurs which prevents TCOE from broadcasting the 

meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, or in the 

event of a disruption within the County Board's control that prevents members of the public from 

offering public comments, the County Board shall take no further action on any agenda item until 

public access via the call-in or internet-based service option to the meeting is restored 

The County Board may, in its discretion, provide a physical location from which the public may attend 

or comment. [Government Code 54953] 

 

The County Board may continue to conduct meetings by teleconference, as specified above for 

teleconferencing during proclaimed states of emergency, by a majority vote finding within 45 days after  

teleconferencing for the first time, and every 45 days thereafter, that either: [Government Code 54953]  

 

1. The County Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency 

 



 

Page 7 of 9 

2. The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the County Board to meet safely 

in person 

 

Hearings 

 

The County Board may occasionally convene public hearings. Such hearings are held solely to allow the 

Board and members of the public to receive information.  

 

If a quorum of Board members is present at a hearing, notice of the hearing shall be provided according 

to procedures specified above for regular meetings.  

 

Other Gatherings 
 

Attendance by a majority of County Board members at any of the following events is not subject to state 

open meeting laws provided that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific County Board 

business among themselves other than as part of the scheduled program:  [Government Code 54952.2]  

1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of 

general interest to the public or to County Board members. 

 

2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the Tulare County 

Office of Education to address a topic of local community concern. 

 

3. An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency. 

 

4. A purely social or ceremonial occasion. 

 

5. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the County Board, provided that the 

County Board members who are not members of the standing committee attend only as 

observers. 

6. An open and noticed meeting of another body of TCOE. 

 

Individual contacts or conversations between a County Board member and any other person are not subject 

to the Brown Act. [Government Code 54952.2] 
 

Location of Meetings 

 

Meetings shall not be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of ancestry 

or any characteristic listed in Government Code 11135. In addition, meetings shall not be held in a facility 

which is inaccessible to individuals with disabilities or where members of the public must make a payment 

or purchase in order to be admitted. [Government Code 54961] 

 

Meetings shall be held within TCOE boundaries, except to do any of the following: [Government Code 

54954] 

 

1. When necessary to comply with state or federal law or court order or to attend a judicial or 

administrative proceeding to which the Board or Tulare County Office of Education is a party. 

 

2. To inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the boundaries of 

the County, provided that the topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the property. 

 



 

Page 8 of 9 

3. To participate in meetings or discussions of multi-agency significance, provided these meetings are 

held within one of the other agencies’ boundaries, with all participating agencies giving the notice 

required by law. 

 

4. To meet in the closest meeting facility if the Tulare County Office of Education has no meeting 

facility within the Board’s boundaries.  

 

5. To meet with state or federal officials when a local meeting would be impractical, solely to discuss 

legislative or regulatory issues affecting the Board or Tulare County Office of Education over which 

the state or federal officials have jurisdiction. 

 

6. To meet outside the Board’s immediate jurisdiction in or near a facility owned by the Tulare County 

Office of Education provided the meeting is limited to items directly related to that facility. 

 

7. Visit the office of legal counsel of the Board or of the Tulare County Office of Education for a closed 

session on pending litigation held pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 when to do so 

would reduce legal fees or costs. 

Meetings exempted from the boundary requirements, as specified in Items #1-7 above, shall still be 

subject to the notice and open meeting requirements for regular and special meetings when a quorum of 

the County Board attends the meeting. 

 

If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the regular meeting location unsafe, meetings 

shall be held for the duration of the emergency at a place designated by the County Board president or 

designee, who shall so inform all news media who have requested notice of special meetings by the most 

rapid available means of communication. [Government Code 54954] 

 

 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 

1011 –Regular meetings  

1012 –Special Meetings 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

3511.1 –Local agency executives 

11135 –Unlawful discrimination 

54950-54963 –The Ralph M. Brown Act 

54953 –Meetings to be open and public; teleconferencing 

54954 –Time and place of regular meetings 

54954.2 –Agenda posting requirements; board actions 

54955 –Adjournment; adjourned meetings 

54956 –Special Meetings 

54956.5 –Emergency meetings 

7920.000-7930.170 –California Public Records Act 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28  

35.160 –Effective communications 

36.303 –Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability; public accommodations; auxiliary aids and +services 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

42 USC 12101-12213 –Americans with Disabilities Act 

COURT DECISIONS 

Wolfe v. City of Fremont (2006) 144 Cal.App. 4th 533 

 



 

Page 9 of 9 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (2005) 

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 30 (2001) 

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2001) 

79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 69 (1996) 

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995) 

 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATION  

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014 

INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATION  

The ABCs of Open Government Laws 

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATION  

Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, 2nd Ed., 2010 

 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Attorney General's Office: http://www/ag/ca/gov 

Institute for Local Government: http://www.ca-ilg.org 

League of California Cities: http://www.cacities.org 

 

 

Bylaw adopted:  11/19/1980     Tulare County Board of Education  

       Visalia, California 

Revised:  10/7/1987, 1/13/1999, 3/13/2024  

http://www.csba.org/




Page 1 of 5 

 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board Bylaw 

 

Bylaws of the Board 

BB 9323(a) 9322 

Agenda/Meeting Materials 

Construction of Agenda Agenda/Meeting Materials 

 

Agenda Content  

 

Tulare County Board of Education meeting agendas shall reflect the County Board's vision and goals, 

including a focus on student learning and well-being. 

 

Each agenda shall state the meeting time and place and shall briefly describe each item of business to be 

transacted or discussed, including items to be discussed in closed session. [Government Code 54954.2] 

 

In order to promote efficient meetings, the County Board may bundle a number of items and act upon 

more than one item them together by a single vote through the use of a consent calendar agenda. Consent 

agenda items shall be items address matters of a routine nature or items for which no Board discussion is 

County Board discussion is not anticipated and for which the County Superintendent recommends 

approval. In accordance with law, the public has a right to comment on any consent item.  At the request 

of any member of the Board, any item on the consent agenda shall be removed and given individual 

consideration for action as a regular separate agenda item. 

 

Any County Board action that involves borrowing $100,000 or more shall be discussed, considered, and 

deliberated upon as a separate item of business on the meeting agenda. [Government Code 53635.7] 

 

The agenda shall provide members of the public an opportunity to address the County Board on any 

agenda item, including any consent agenda item, before or during the County Board's consideration of the 

item.  Every The agenda for a regular meeting shall, in addition,  also provide members of the public an 

opportunity for members of the public to directly address the County Board on items of interest to the 

public that are matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board; provided that no action 

shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 

Government Code 54954.2(b).  which are not on the agenda. [Education Code 35145.5; Government Code 

54954.3] 

 

The agenda does not need to provide an opportunity for public comment on an item that has previously 

been considered at an open meeting by a committee comprised exclusively of County Board members, 

provided that members of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment on the item before or during 

the committee's consideration of the item, and the item has not been substantially changed since the 

committee considered it. [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

The notice and agenda shall describe the means available for the public to access the meeting and provide 

public comment in-person and, if a County Board member is appearing remotely due to an emergency 



Page 2 of 5 

circumstance or for just cause pursuant to Government Code 54953, through an internet-based service or 

call-in option. [Government Code 54953] 

 

The agenda shall specify that an include information regarding how, when, and to whom a request for 

disability-related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, may be made 

by an individual who requires disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in 

the County Board meeting must make a request in writing to the Office of the County Superintendent of 

Schools at 2637 W. Burrel, Visalia, CA 93278-5091, (559) 733-6301 as soon as possible, but no later than 

two days before the meeting. as well as the procedure for receiving and resolving such requests as required 

by law. [Government Code 54953, 54954.2] 

 

Each agenda for a regular meeting shall list the address designated for public inspection of documents 

related to an open session item, or for records of a statement threatening litigation against the Tulare 

County Office of Education (TCOE) to be discussed in closed session, when such documents have been 

distributed to the County Board less than 72 hours before the meeting. [Government Code 54956.9, 

54957.5] 

 

Agenda Preparation 

 

The County Board president and the County Superintendent of Schools, The Superintendent, as secretary 

to the County Board of Education, shall work together to prepare an develop the agenda for each regular 

and special meeting, which shall contain a brief general description of each item of business to be 

transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Any Board member may call the Superintendent, no later than five 

school days prior to the legally required public positing of the agenda, and request any item to be placed 

on the agenda. 

 

Any County Board member or member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of 

the County Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting. Prior to submitting a request, the proper 

protocol for attempting to resolve the matter should be followed, including discussion of the matter with 

the appropriate administrator. The request must shall be submitted in writing and be submitted to the 

County Superintendent or designee with supporting documents and information, if any, at least one two 

weeks before the scheduled meeting date. Items submitted less than a two weeks before the scheduled 

meeting date may be postponed to a later meeting in order to allow sufficient time for consideration and 

research of the issue. A member of the public may submit no more than one item per agenda. An agenda 

may include no more than two items submitted by the public. The County Board retains discretion to 

modify the provisions of the paragraph in unusual situations. 

 

The County Board president and County Superintendent shall initially decide whether a request from a  

member of the public is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board. Items not within  

the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board shall not be placed on the agenda. In addition,  

before placing the item on the agenda, the County Board president and County Superintendent shall  

determine if the item is merely a request for information, and if so, respond accordingly.  

 

If a request from a County Board member to place an item on the agenda is denied, the member may   

ask the County Board to take action during a County Board meeting to determine whether the item  

shall be placed on the agenda.  

 

The County Board president and County Superintendent shall also decide whether an agenda item is  

appropriate for discussion in open or closed session, whether the item should be an action item subject  



Page 3 of 5 

to County Board vote or an information item, and when the item is placed on the agenda.  

 

Agenda Dissemination to County Board Member 

 

At least 72 hours before each regular meeting, each County Board member shall be provided a copy of  

the agenda and agenda packet, including any reports from the County Superintendent; minutes to be  

approved; copies of communications; reports from committees, staff, and others; and other available  

documents pertinent to the meeting.  

 

When special meetings are called, County Board members shall receive, at least 24 hours prior to the  

meeting, notice of the business to be transacted. [Government Code 54956]  

 

County Board members shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual members may  

confer directly with the County Superintendent or designee to ask questions and/or request additional  

information on agenda items. However, a majority of County Board members shall not, outside of a   

noticed meeting, directly or through intermediaries or electronic means discuss, deliberate, or take  

action on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board.  

 

Agenda Dissemination to Members of the Public  

 

Agenda and related materials distributed to the County Board shall be made available to the public  

upon request without delay. However, only those documents which are public records under the Public  

Records Act and which relate to an agenda item scheduled for the open session portion of a regular meeting 

or which contain a claim or written threat of litigation which will be disclosed in closed session shall be 

made available to the public. [Government Code 54956.9, 54957.5] 

 

Posting of Agendas 

 

At least 72 hours prior to the time of each a regular meeting, an agenda which includes but is not  

limited to all matters on which action may be taken, shall be posted in a conspicuous place near the  

entrance to the County Office of Education where members of the public may view it. at one or more  

locations freely accessible to members of the public. [Government Code 54954.2]  The agenda for a  

special meeting shall be posted in the same location at least 24 hours before the meeting. When an  

item properly posted for a regular meeting is continued to a subsequent meeting, it may not be on the  

agenda of the subsequent meeting if the subsequent meeting occurs within five days. The County  

Board shall publicly identify the item before discussing it. [Government Code 54954.2] 

 

In addition, the agenda shall be posted on the homepage of the TCOE website. The posted agenda  

shall be accessible through a prominent direct link to the current agenda or to the TCOE's agenda  

management platform in accordance with Government Code 54954.2.  

 

If a writing which relates to an open session agenda item, or which contains a claim or written threat  

of litigation which will be discussed in closed session during a regular County Board meeting is  

distributed to the County Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be made  

available for public inspection at a designated location at the same time the document is distributed to  

all or a majority of the County Board. However, if the writing is distributed to at least a majority of the  

County Board, less than 72 hours prior to the meeting and the designated location is closed to the  

public, this requirement may be satisfied by posting the writing on the TCOE website if the following  

conditions are met:  [Government Code 54957.5] 

 



Page 4 of 5 

1. An initial staff report or similar document containing an executive summary and any staff  

 recommendations related to the agenda item is made available for public inspection at the  

 designated location at least 72 hours before the meeting  

 

2. The writing is immediately posted on TCOE's website in a position and manner that makes  

 it clear that the writing relates to an agenda item for the upcoming meeting  

 

3. TCOE lists the website address where such writings may be accessed on all County Board  

 meeting agendas  

 

4. A physical copy of the document is made available for public inspection at the designated  

 location at the beginning of the next regular business hours, but not less than 24 hours  

 before the relevant County Board meeting 

 

As County Board secretary, it is the responsibility of Tthe County Superintendent or designee shall to mail 

a copy of the agenda, or a copy of all the documents constituting the agenda packet to any person who 

requests the items. , or if the person requests delivery by email, to email the materials or a website link to 

the materials to that person. The requested materials shall be emailed or mailed at the time the agenda is 

posted or upon distribution of the agenda to a majority of the County Board, whichever occurs first. 

[Government Code 54954.1]  

 

Any request for mailed copies of agendas or agenda packets shall be in writing and shall be valid for the 

calendar year in which it is filed. Written requests must be renewed following January 1 of each year. 

[Government Code 54954.1] 

 

The County Board reserves the right to establish a fee for mailing the agenda or agenda packet, as 

determined by the County Superintendent or designee, not to exceed the cost of providing the service.  

 

Any document prepared by the County Board or TCOE and distributed during a public meeting shall be 

made available for public inspection at the meeting. Any document prepared by another person and 

presented at the meeting shall be made available for public inspection after the meeting. These 

requirements shall not apply to a document that is exempt from public disclosure under the Public Records 

Act. [Government Code 54957.5] 

 

Agenda Dissemination 

 

Upon request, the County Superintendent or designee shall make the agenda, agenda packet, and/or any 

written documents writings distributed to the board during a public meeting will be made available in 

appropriate alternative formats upon request by a person with a disability as required by the American 

with Disabilities Act.  [Government Code 5494.1 54954.1] 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

1011 –  Regular meetings  

1012 –  Special Meetings 

35145.5 – Agenda; public participation and regulations  

GOVERNMENT CODE  

54950-54957.9 - open meeting requirements 

7920.000-7930.215 – California Public Records Act  

53635.7 –  Separate item of business  



Page 5 of 5 

54953    –  Meetings; Americans with Disabilities Act accessibility  

54954.1 –  Mailed notice to property owners  

54954.2 –  Agenda posting requirements; board actions  

54954.3 –  Opportunity for public to address legislative body  

54954.5 –  Closed session item descriptions  

54956    –  Special Meetings  

54956.5 –  Emergency meetings  

54956.9 –  Lawyer-client privilege for purpose of conducting closed session  

54957.5 –  Public records  

54960.2 –  Challenging board actions; cease and desist  

95000-95029 – California Early Intervention Services Act 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 

35.160 – Effective communications 

36.303 – Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability; public accommodations; auxiliary aids and 

services 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

12101-12213 – Equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 

COURT DECISIONS 

Mooney v. Garcia (2012) 207 Cal.App.4th 229 

Caldwell v. Roseville Joint Union High School District (2007) U.S. Dist. LEXIS 66318 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

99 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 18 (2016) 

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995) 

 

Management Resources: 

ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATION  

The Brown Act:  Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003 

CSBA PUBLICATION  

The Brown Act:  School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2019 

Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2018 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Attorney General's Office:  http://www/ag/ca/gov 

 

 

Bylaw adopted:  11/19/1980                             Tulare County Board of Education   

by the Board:       Visalia, CA California 

 

Revised: 1/21/1987, 1/10/2001, 3/12/2003, __/__/2024    

Revised:          1/10/01     

Revised:          3/12/03 



 

Page 1 of 5 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board Bylaw 

 

Bylaws of the Board 

BB 9322 

Agenda/Meeting Materials 

 

Agenda/Meeting Materials 

 

Agenda Content  

 

Tulare County Board of Education meeting agendas shall reflect the County Board's vision and goals, 

including a focus on student learning and well-being. 

 

Each agenda shall state the meeting time and place and shall briefly describe each item of business to be 

transacted or discussed, including items to be discussed in closed session. [Government Code 54954.2] 

 

In order to promote efficient meetings, the County Board may bundle a number of items and act upon 

them together by a single vote through the use of a consent calendar agenda. Consent agenda items shall 

address matters of a routine nature for which County Board discussion is not anticipated and for which 

the County Superintendent recommends approval. In accordance with law, the public has a right to 

comment on any consent item.  At the request of any member of the Board, any item on the consent agenda 

shall be removed and given individual consideration for action as a separate agenda item. 

 

Any County Board action that involves borrowing $100,000 or more shall be discussed, considered, and 

deliberated upon as a separate item of business on the meeting agenda. [Government Code 53635.7] 

 

The agenda shall provide members of the public an opportunity to address the County Board on any 

agenda item, including any consent agenda item, before or during the County Board's consideration of the 

item.  The agenda for a regular meeting shall also provide members of the public an opportunity to address 

the County Board on matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board which are not on 

the agenda. [Education Code 35145.5; Government Code 54954.3] 

 

The agenda does not need to provide an opportunity for public comment on an item that has previously 

been considered at an open meeting by a committee comprised exclusively of County Board members, 

provided that members of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment on the item before or during 

the committee's consideration of the item, and the item has not been substantially changed since the 

committee considered it. [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

The notice and agenda shall describe the means available for the public to access the meeting and provide 

public comment in-person and, if a County Board member is appearing remotely due to an emergency 

circumstance or for just cause pursuant to Government Code 54953, through an internet-based service or 

call-in option. [Government Code 54953] 

 

The agenda shall include information regarding how, when, and to whom a request for disability-related 

accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, may be made by an individual 



 

Page 2 of 5 

who requires modification or accommodation in order to participate in the County Board meeting as well 

as the procedure for receiving and resolving such requests as required by law. [Government Code 54953, 

54954.2] 

 

Each agenda for a regular meeting shall list the address designated for public inspection of documents 

related to an open session item, or for records of a statement threatening litigation against the Tulare 

County Office of Education (TCOE) to be discussed in closed session, when such documents have been 

distributed to the County Board less than 72 hours before the meeting. [Government Code 54956.9, 

54957.5] 

 

Agenda Preparation 

 

The County Board president and the County Superintendent of Schools, as secretary to the County Board, 

shall work together to develop the agenda for each regular and special meeting.   

 

Any County Board member or member of the public may request that a matter within the jurisdiction of 

the County Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting. Prior to submitting a request, the proper 

protocol for attempting to resolve the matter should be followed, including discussion of the matter with 

the appropriate administrator. The request shall be submitted in writing to the County Superintendent or 

designee with supporting documents and information, if any, at least two weeks before the scheduled 

meeting date. Items submitted less than two weeks before the scheduled meeting date may be postponed 

to a later meeting in order to allow sufficient time for consideration and research of the issue. A member 

of the public may submit no more than one item per agenda. An agenda may include no more than two 

items submitted by the public. The County Board retains discretion to modify the provisions of the 

paragraph in unusual situations. 

 

The County Board president and County Superintendent shall initially decide whether a request from a 

member of the public is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board. Items not within the 

subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board shall not be placed on the agenda. In addition, before 

placing the item on the agenda, the County Board president and County Superintendent shall determine 

if the item is merely a request for information, and if so, respond accordingly.  

 

If a request from a County Board member to place an item on the agenda is denied, the member may ask 

the County Board to take action during a County Board meeting to determine whether the item shall be 

placed on the agenda.  

 

The County Board president and County Superintendent shall also decide whether an agenda item is 

appropriate for discussion in open or closed session, whether the item should be an action item subject to 

County Board vote or an information item, and when the item is placed on the agenda.  

 

Agenda Dissemination to County Board Member 

 

At least 72 hours before each regular meeting, each County Board member shall be provided a copy of 

the agenda and agenda packet, including any reports from the County Superintendent; minutes to be 

approved; copies of communications; reports from committees, staff, and others; and other available 

documents pertinent to the meeting.  

 

When special meetings are called, County Board members shall receive, at least 24 hours prior to the 

meeting, notice of the business to be transacted. [Government Code 54956]  

 



 

Page 3 of 5 

County Board members shall review agenda materials before each meeting. Individual members may 

confer directly with the County Superintendent or designee to ask questions and/or request additional 

information on agenda items. However, a majority of County Board members shall not, outside of a 

noticed meeting, directly or through intermediaries or electronic means discuss, deliberate, or take action 

on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board.  

 

Agenda Dissemination to Members of the Public  

 

Agenda and related materials distributed to the County Board shall be made available to the public  

upon request without delay. However, only those documents which are public records under the Public  

Records Act and which relate to an agenda item scheduled for the open session portion of a regular 

meeting or which contain a claim or written threat of litigation which will be disclosed in closed session 

shall be made available to the public. [Government Code 54956.9, 54957.5] 

 

At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, an agenda which includes but is not limited to all matters on 

which action may be taken, shall be posted at one or more locations freely accessible to members of the 

public. [Government Code 54954.2]  The agenda for a special meeting shall be posted in the same 

location at least 24 hours before the meeting. When an item properly posted for a regular meeting is 

continued to a subsequent meeting, it may not be on the agenda of the subsequent meeting if the 

subsequent meeting occurs within five days. The County Board shall publicly identify the item before 

discussing it. [Government Code 54954.2] 

 

In addition, the agenda shall be posted on the homepage of the TCOE website. The posted agenda shall 

be accessible through a prominent direct link to the current agenda or to the TCOE's agenda management 

platform in accordance with Government Code 54954.2.  

 

If a writing which relates to an open session agenda item, or which contains a claim or written threat of 

litigation which will be discussed in closed session during a regular County Board meeting is distributed 

to the County Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be made available for public 

inspection at a designated location at the same time the document is distributed to all or a majority of the 

County Board. However, if the writing is distributed to at least a majority of the County Board, less than 

72 hours prior to the meeting and the designated location is closed to the public, this requirement may be 

satisfied by posting the writing on the TCOE website if the following conditions are met: [Government 

Code 54957.5] 

 

1.  An initial staff report or similar document containing an executive summary and any staff 

recommendations related to the agenda item is made available for public inspection at the 

designated location at least 72 hours before the meeting  

2.  The writing is immediately posted on TCOE's website in a position and manner that makes it clear 

that the writing relates to an agenda item for the upcoming meeting  

3.  TCOE lists the website address where such writings may be accessed on all County Board meeting 

agendas  

4.  A physical copy of the document is made available for public inspection at the designated location 

at the beginning of the next regular business hours, but not less than 24 hours before the relevant 

County Board meeting 



 

Page 4 of 5 

As County Board secretary, it is the responsibility of the County Superintendent or designee to mail a 

copy of the agenda, or a copy of all the documents constituting the agenda packet to any person who 

requests the items, or if the person requests delivery by email, to email the materials or a website link to 

the materials to that person. The requested materials shall be emailed or mailed at the time the agenda is 

posted or upon distribution of the agenda to a majority of the County Board, whichever occurs first. 

[Government Code 54954.1]  

 

Any request for mailed copies of agendas or agenda packets shall be in writing and shall be valid for the 

calendar year in which it is filed. Written requests must be renewed following January 1 of each year. 

[Government Code 54954.1] 

 

The County Board reserves the right to establish a fee for mailing the agenda or agenda packet, as 

determined by the County Superintendent, not to exceed the cost of providing the service.  

 

Any document prepared by the County Board or TCOE and distributed during a public meeting shall be 

made available for public inspection at the meeting. Any document prepared by another person and 

presented at the meeting shall be made available for public inspection after the meeting. These 

requirements shall not apply to a document that is exempt from public disclosure under the Public 

Records Act. [Government Code 54957.5] 

 

Upon request, the County Superintendent or designee shall make the agenda, agenda packet, and/or any 

writings distributed to the board during a public meeting available in appropriate alternative formats 

upon request by a person with a disability as required by the American with Disabilities Act. 

[Government Code 54954.1] 

 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 

1011 –  Regular meetings  

1012 –  Special Meetings 

35145.5 – Agenda; public participation and regulations  

GOVERNMENT CODE  

7920.000-7930.215 – California Public Records Act  

53635.7 –  Separate item of business  

54953    –  Meetings; Americans with Disabilities Act accessibility  

54954.1 –  Mailed notice to property owners  

54954.2 –  Agenda posting requirements; board actions  

54954.3 –  Opportunity for public to address legislative body  

54954.5 –  Closed session item descriptions  

54956    –  Special Meetings  

54956.5 –  Emergency meetings  

54956.9 –  Lawyer-client privilege for purpose of conducting closed session  

54957.5 –  Public records  

54960.2 –  Challenging board actions; cease and desist  

95000-95029 – California Early Intervention Services Act 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 

35.160 – Effective communications 

36.303 – Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability; public accommodations; auxiliary aids and services 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

12101-12213 – Equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 

 

 



 

Page 5 of 5 

COURT DECISIONS 

Mooney v. Garcia (2012) 207 Cal.App.4th 229 

Caldwell v. Roseville Joint Union High School District (2007) U.S. Dist. LEXIS 66318 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

99 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 18 (2016) 

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995) 

 

Management Resources: 
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATION  

The Brown Act:  Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, rev. 2003 

CSBA PUBLICATION  

The Brown Act:  School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2019 

Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2018 

 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Attorney General's Office:  http://www/ag/ca/gov 

 

 

Bylaw adopted: 11/19/1980                             Tulare County Board of Education   

       Visalia, California 

 

Revised: 1/21/1987, 1/10/2001, 3/12/2003, 3/13/2024 





Page 1 of 5 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board Bylaw 
 

Bylaws of the Board 

BB 9325 

Meeting Conduct 

 

Meeting Conduct 

 

The Tulare County Board of Education endeavors to conduct business efficiently and in a manner that 

promotes full and fair consideration of the issues and allows for meaningful participation of members 

of the public. 

 

Meeting Procedures 

 

The All County Board meetings shall begin on time and shall be guided by an agenda prepared and 

delivered in advance to all Board members and to other persons upon request in accordance with County 

Board bylaws and posted and distributed in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (open meeting 

requirements) and other applicable laws. 

The County Board President shall conduct Board meetings in accordance with the County Board 

bylaws and approved meeting procedures that enable the Board to efficiently consider issues and carry 

out the will of the majority. 

 

Quorum and Abstentions 

 

A majority of the members of the County Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business. [Education Code 1013] 

 

On a call by any County Board member, a voice vote shall be taken upon any proposition and the vote 

shall be recorded in the minutes. [Education Code 1015] 

 

Unless otherwise provided by law, affirmative votes by a majority of all the membership of the County 

Board are required to approve any action under consideration, regardless of the number of members 

present. 

 

The County Board believes that when no conflict of interest requires abstention, its members have a duty 

to vote on issues before them. When a member abstains, the abstention shall not be counted as an 

affirmative vote for purposes of determining whether a majority of the membership of the County Board 

has taken action. 

If the County Board consists of seven members and not more than two vacancies occur on the County 

Board, the vacant position(s) shall not be counted for purposes of determining how many members of the 

County Board constitute a majority. In addition, whenever any provision of the Education Code requires 

unanimous action of all or a specific number of the members, any vacant position(s) shall be not be 

counted for purposes of determining the total membership constituting the County Board. 



Page 2 of 5 

Public Participation 

 

Members of the public are encouraged to attend County Board meetings and to address the County 

Board concerning any item on the agenda or within the County Board’s jurisdiction.  

 

So as not to inhibit public participation, persons Although they may voluntarily do so, members of the 

public attending County Board meetings shall not be requested required to sign in, complete a 

questionnaire, or otherwise provide their name or other information as a condition of attending the 

meeting, except that if the meeting is conducted with remote public participation or a County Board 

member attending remotely pursuant to Government Code 54953, a member of the public desiring to 

provide comment through the use of a third party internet website or online platform may be required 

to register as required by the third party provider. 

 

In order to conduct county office of education business in an orderly and efficient manner, the County 

Board requires that public presentations to the Board comply with the following procedures: 

 

1. The County Board shall give members of the public an opportunity to address the Board on any 

item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board, 

either before or during the Board’s consideration of each the item. of business to be discussed at 

regular or special meetings. [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

2. At a time so designated on the agenda, members of the public may bring before the County Board, 

at a regular meeting, matters that are not listed on the agenda. The Board may refer such a matter 

to the County Superintendent or take it under advisement, but shall not take action at that time 

except as allowed by law. The matter may be placed on the agenda of a subsequent meeting for 

action or discussion by the Board. 

 

3. Without taking action, County Board members or Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) staff 

may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by the public about items not appearing 

on the agenda.   4.  Additionally, on their own initiative or in response to questions posed by the 

public, a County Board or TCOE staff member may ask a question for clarification, make a brief 

announcement, or make a brief report on his/her own activities. Furthermore, the County Board or 

a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, ask 

TCOE staff to report back to the Board at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take 

action directing staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. [Government Code 54954.2] 

 

4. The County Board need not allow members of the public to speak on any item that has already been 

considered by a committee composed exclusively of County Board members at a public meeting where 

the public had the opportunity to address the committee on that item.  However, if the County Board 

determines that the item has been substantially changed since the committee heard the item, the County 

Board shall provide an opportunity for the public to speak. [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

5. A person wishing to be heard by the County Board shall first be recognized by the President and shall 

then proceed to comment as briefly as the subject permits.  

 

6. In general, Iindividual speakers shall will be allowed five three minutes to address the County Board 

on each agenda or non-agenda item.  The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item 

to 20 minutes.  With Board consent, the President may increase or decrease the time allowed for public 

presentation, depending on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard.  The President 

may take a poll of speakers for or against a particular issue and may ask that additional persons speak 



Page 3 of 5 

only if they have something new to add.  In exceptional circumstances, however, the Board President 

may, with County Board consent, adjust the amount of time allowed for public input and/or the time 

allotted for each speaker, when such adjustment is necessary to ensure full opportunity for public 

input. Any such adjustment shall be done equitably so as to allow a diversity of viewpoints. The 

President may also ask members of the public with the same viewpoint to select a few individuals to 

address the Board on behalf of that viewpoint. 

 

In order to ensure that non-English speakers receive the same opportunity to directly address the 

County Board, any member of the public who utilizes a translator shall be provided at least twice the 

allotted time to address the Board, unless simultaneous translation equipment is used to allow the 

Board to hear the translated public testimony simultaneously.  [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

7. 6. The County Board President may rule on the appropriateness of a topic, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

a. If the topic would be more suitably addressed at a later time, the President may indicate the time and 

place on the agenda when it should be presented.  

 

b. The County Board shall not prohibit public criticism of its policies, procedures, programs, services, 

acts or omissions.  [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

c. In addition, the The County Board may shall not prohibit public criticism of County Office of 

Education employees. persons employed directly by the County Board. However, whenever a 

member of the public initiates specific complaints or charges against an individual TCOE employee, 

the County Board President shall inform the complainant that employment matters are the 

jurisdiction of the County Superintendent and shall advise the complainant to address the complaint 

to the County Superintendent using the appropriate complaint procedure. 

 

8. 7.  The County Board President shall not permit any disturbance or willful interruption actual 

disruption of Board meetings. Persistent Actual disruption by an individual or group or any conduct 

or statements that threaten the safety of any person(s) at the meeting shall be grounds for the chair 

President to terminate the privilege of addressing the County Board. and remove the individual from 

the meeting. 

 

9. The County Board or designee may remove disruptive individuals and order the room cleared if 

necessary; in this case, members of the media not participating in the disturbances shall be allowed 

to remain, and individual(s) not participating in such disturbances may be allowed to remain at the 

discretion of the Board. an individual for actually disrupting the meeting. Prior to removal, the 

individual shall be warned that their behavior is disrupting the meeting and that failure to cease the 

disruptive behavior may result in removal. If, after being warned, the individual does not promptly 

cease the disruptive behavior, the County Board president, or designee, may then remove the 

individual from the meeting. [Government Code 54957.95] 

 

When an individual's behavior constitutes the use of force or a true threat of force, the individual 

shall be removed from a County Board meeting without a warning. [Government Code 54957.95] 

 

Disrupting means engaging in behavior during a County Board meeting that actually disrupts, 

disturbs, impedes, or renders infeasible the orderly conduct of the meeting and includes, but is not 

limited to, a failure to comply with reasonable and lawful regulations adopted by a legislative body 

pursuant to Section 54954.3 or any other law, or engaging in behavior that constitutes use of force or 



Page 4 of 5 

a true threat of force. [Government Code 54957.95] 

 

True threat of force means a threat that has sufficient indicia of intent and seriousness, that a 

reasonable observer would perceive it to be an actual threat to use force by the person making the 

threat. [Government Code 54957.95] 

 

Additionally, the County Board may order the room cleared if necessary.  In this case, members of 

the media not participating in the disturbance shall be allowed to remain, and individuals not 

participating in such disturbances may be allowed to remain at the discretion of the County Board. 

When the room is ordered cleared due to a disturbance, further Board proceedings shall concern only 

matters appearing on the agenda. [Government Code 54957.9] 

 

When disruptive conduct occurs, the County Board may decide to recess the meeting to help restore 

order, or if removing the disruptive individual(s) or clearing the room is infeasible, move the 

meeting to another location. Law enforcement shall be contacted as necessary. 

 

Recording by the Public 

 

Members of the public may record an open County Board meeting using an audio or video recorder, still 

or motion picture camera, cell phone, or other device, provided that the noise, illumination, or obstruction 

of view does not persistently disrupt the meeting. The County Superintendent or designee shall designate 

locations from which members of the public may broadcast, photograph or tape record open meetings 

make such recordings without causing a distraction. If the Board County Superintendent or designee finds 

that noise, illumination or obstruction of view related to these activities would persistently disrupt the 

proceedings; these activities shall be discontinued or restricted as determined by the Board County 

Superintendent or designee. [Government Code 54953.5, 54953.6]   

 

Meetings of the Board of education shall be conducted by the President in a manner consistent with the 

adopted bylaws of the Board. 

 

All Board meetings shall commence at the stated time and shall be guided by an agenda which will have 

been prepared and delivered in advance to all Board members and other designated persons. 

 

The conduct of meetings shall, to the fullest extent possible, enable members of the Board (1) to 

consider problems to be solved, weigh evidence related thereto, and make wise decisions intended to 

solve the problems, and (2) to receive, consider and take any needed action with respect to reports of 

accomplishment both as to students and as to Tulare County Office of Education operations. 

 

It is explicitly recognized that California State Law requires that all actions of the County Board of 

Education shall be taken openly and that all its deliberations shall be conducted openly. [Government 

Code 54950] 

 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 

1011 – Regular Meetings, subject to Brown Act 

1040(a)(b) - County Board of Education to adopt rules and regulations for its own governance 

35164– Actions by majority vote 

35165– Effect of vacancies upon majority and unanimous votes by seven member board 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

54953.3 – Meetings to be open and public; remote attendance 



Page 5 of 5 

54953.5 – Audio or video tape recording of proceedings 

54953.6 – Broadcasting of proceedings 

54954.2 – Agenda; posting, action on other matters 

54954.3 – Opportunity for public to address legislative body; regulations 

54957 – Closed session personnel matters 

54957.9 – Disorderly conduct of general public during meeting; clearing of room 

54957.95 – Open meetings; orderly conduct 

PENAL CODE 

403  –  Disruption of assembly or meeting 

COURT DECISIONS 
Norse v. City of Santa Cruz, (9th Cir. 2010) 629 F3d 966 

City of San Jose v. Garbett, (2010) 190 Cal.App.4th 526 

McMahon v. Albany Unified School District, (2002) 104 Cal.App.4th 1275 

Rubin v. City of Burbank, (2002) 101 Cal.App.4th 1194 

Baca v. Moreno Valley Unified School District, (1996) 936 F.Supp. 719 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

90 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 47 (2007) 

76 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 281 (1993) 

66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 336 (1983) 

63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 215 (1980) 

61 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 243, 253 (1978) 

59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 532 (1976) 

55 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (1972) 

 

Management Resources:  

ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATION 
The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003 

CSBA PUBLICATION  
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014 

Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2018 

 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Attorney General's Office:  http://www/ag/ca/gov 

 

 

Bylaw adopted:  11/19/1980    Tulare County Board of Education : 

by the Board:  11/19/80     Visalia, CA California 

 

Revised: 1/21/1987, 1/10/2001, __/__/2024 

Revised: 1/10/01 



 

Page 1 of 5 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board Bylaw 
Bylaws of the Board 

BB 9325 

Meeting Conduct 

 

Meeting Conduct 

 

The Tulare County Board of Education endeavors to conduct business efficiently and in a manner that 

promotes full and fair consideration of the issues and allows for meaningful participation of members of 

the public. 

 

Meeting Procedures 

 

All County Board meetings shall begin on time and shall be guided by an agenda prepared in accordance 

with County Board bylaws and posted and distributed in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (open 

meeting requirements) and other applicable laws. 

The County Board President shall conduct meetings in accordance with the County Board bylaws and 

approved meeting procedures that enable the Board to efficiently consider issues and carry out the will of 

the majority. 

 

Quorum and Abstentions 

 

A majority of the members of the County Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. 

[Education Code 1013] 

 

On a call by any County Board member, a voice vote shall be taken upon any proposition and the vote 

shall be recorded in the minutes. [Education Code 1015] 

 

Unless otherwise provided by law, affirmative votes by a majority of all the membership of the County 

Board are required to approve any action under consideration, regardless of the number of members 

present. 

 

The County Board believes that when no conflict of interest requires abstention, its members have a duty 

to vote on issues before them. When a member abstains, the abstention shall not be counted as an 

affirmative vote for purposes of determining whether a majority of the membership of the County Board 

has taken action. 

If the County Board consists of seven members and not more than two vacancies occur on the County 

Board, the vacant position(s) shall not be counted for purposes of determining how many members of the 

County Board constitute a majority. In addition, whenever any provision of the Education Code requires 

unanimous action of all or a specific number of the members, any vacant position(s) shall be not be 

counted for purposes of determining the total membership constituting the County Board. 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 5 

Public Participation 

 

Members of the public are encouraged to attend County Board meetings and to address the County 

Board concerning any item on the agenda or within the County Board’s jurisdiction.  

 

Although they may voluntarily do so, members of the public attending County Board meetings shall not 

be required to sign in, complete a questionnaire, or otherwise provide their name or other information as 

a condition of attending the meeting, except that if the meeting is conducted with remote public 

participation or a County Board member attending remotely pursuant to Government Code 54953, a 

member of the public desiring to provide comment through the use of a third party internet website or 

online platform may be required to register as required by the third party provider. 

 

In order to conduct business in an orderly and efficient manner, the County Board requires that public 

presentations to the Board comply with the following procedures: 

 

1. The County Board shall give members of the public an opportunity to address the Board on any item 

of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the County Board, either before 

or during the Board’s consideration of the item. [Government Code 54954.3] 

2. At a time so designated on the agenda, members of the public may bring before the County Board, at 

a regular meeting, matters that are not listed on the agenda. The Board may refer such a matter to the 

County Superintendent or take it under advisement, but shall not take action at that time except as 

allowed by law. The matter may be placed on the agenda of a subsequent meeting for action or 

discussion by the Board. 

3. Without taking action, County Board members or Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) staff 

may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by the public about items not appearing 

on the agenda. Additionally, on their own initiative or in response to questions posed by the public, 

a County Board or TCOE staff member may ask a question for clarification, make a brief 

announcement, or make a brief report on his/her own activities. Furthermore, the County Board or a 

Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, ask TCOE 

staff to report back to the Board at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take action 

directing staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. [Government Code 54954.2] 

4. The County Board need not allow members of the public to speak on any item that has already been 

considered by a committee composed exclusively of County Board members at a public meeting 

where the public had the opportunity to address the committee on that item. However, if the County 

Board determines that the item has been substantially changed since the committee heard the item, 

the County Board shall provide an opportunity for the public to speak. [Government Code 54954.3] 

5. A person wishing to be heard by the County Board shall first be recognized by the President.  

6. In general, individual speakers will be allowed three minutes to address the County Board on each 

agenda or non-agenda item. The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 

minutes. In exceptional circumstances, however, the Board President may, with County Board 

consent, adjust the amount of time allowed for public input and/or the time allotted for each speaker, 

when such adjustment is necessary to ensure full opportunity for public input. Any such adjustment 

shall be done equitably so as to allow a diversity of viewpoints. The President may also ask members 

of the public with the same viewpoint to select a few individuals to address the Board on behalf of that 

viewpoint. 



 

Page 3 of 5 

In order to ensure that non-English speakers receive the same opportunity to directly address the 

County Board, any member of the public who utilizes a translator shall be provided at least twice the 

allotted time to address the Board, unless simultaneous translation equipment is used to allow the 

Board to hear the translated public testimony simultaneously.  [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

7. The County Board President may rule on the appropriateness of a topic, subject to the following 

conditions: 

a. If the topic would be more suitably addressed at a later time, the President may indicate the time 

and place on the agenda when it should be presented.  

 

b. The County Board shall not prohibit public criticism of its policies, procedures, programs, services, 

acts or omissions. [Government Code 54954.3] 

 

c. The County Board shall not prohibit public criticism of persons employed directly by the County 

Board. However, whenever a member of the public initiates specific complaints or charges against 

an individual TCOE employee, the County Board President shall inform the complainant that 

employment matters are the jurisdiction of the County Superintendent and shall advise the 

complainant to address the complaint to the County Superintendent using the appropriate 

complaint procedure. 

8. The County Board President shall not permit actual disruption of meetings. Actual disruption by an 

individual or group or any conduct or statements that threaten the safety of any person(s) at the meeting 

shall be grounds for the President to terminate the privilege of addressing the County Board and 

remove the individual from the meeting. 

 

9. The County Board or designee may remove an individual for actually disrupting the meeting. Prior to 

removal, the individual shall be warned that their behavior is disrupting the meeting and that failure 

to cease the disruptive behavior may result in removal. If, after being warned, the individual does not 

promptly cease the disruptive behavior, the County Board President, or designee, may then remove 

the individual from the meeting. [Government Code 54957.95] 

 

When an individual's behavior constitutes the use of force or a true threat of force, the individual 

shall be removed from a County Board meeting without a warning. [Government Code 54957.95] 

 

Disrupting means engaging in behavior during a County Board meeting that actually disrupts, 

disturbs, impedes, or renders infeasible the orderly conduct of the meeting and includes, but is not 

limited to, a failure to comply with reasonable and lawful regulations adopted by a legislative body 

pursuant to Section 54954.3 or any other law, or engaging in behavior that constitutes use of force or 

a true threat of force. [Government Code 54957.95] 

 

True threat of force means a threat that has sufficient indicia of intent and seriousness, that a 

reasonable observer would perceive it to be an actual threat to use force by the person making the 

threat. [Government Code 54957.95] 

 

Additionally, the County Board may order the room cleared if necessary.  In this case, members of the 

media not participating in the disturbance shall be allowed to remain, and individuals not participating 

in such disturbances may be allowed to remain at the discretion of the County Board. When the room 

is ordered cleared due to a disturbance, further Board proceedings shall concern only matters appearing 

on the agenda. [Government Code 54957.9] 



 

Page 4 of 5 

 

When disruptive conduct occurs, the County Board may decide to recess the meeting to help restore 

order, or if removing the disruptive individual(s) or clearing the room is infeasible, move the meeting 

to another location. Law enforcement shall be contacted as necessary. 

 

Recording by the Public 

 

Members of the public may record an open County Board meeting using an audio or video recorder, still 

or motion picture camera, cell phone, or other device, provided that the noise, illumination, or obstruction 

of view does not persistently disrupt the meeting. The County Superintendent or designee shall designate 

locations from which members of the public may make such recordings without causing a distraction. If 

the County Superintendent or designee finds that noise, illumination or obstruction of view related to these 

activities would persistently disrupt the proceedings; these activities shall be discontinued or restricted as 

determined by the County Superintendent or designee. [Government Code 54953.5, 54953.6]   

 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 

35164– Actions by majority vote 

35165– Effect of vacancies upon majority and unanimous votes by seven member board 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

54953.3 – Meetings to be open and public; remote attendance 

54953.5 – Audio or video tape recording of proceedings 

54953.6 – Broadcasting of proceedings 

54954.2 – Agenda; posting, action on other matters 

54954.3 – Opportunity for public to address legislative body 

54957   –  Closed session personnel matters 

54957.9 – Disorderly conduct of general public during meeting; clearing of room 

54957.95 – Open meetings; orderly conduct 

PENAL CODE 

403  –  Disruption of assembly or meeting 

COURT DECISIONS 

Norse v. City of Santa Cruz, (9th Cir. 2010) 629 F3d 966 

City of San Jose v. Garbett, (2010) 190 Cal.App.4th 526 

McMahon v. Albany Unified School District, (2002) 104 Cal.App.4th 1275 

Rubin v. City of Burbank, (2002) 101 Cal.App.4th 1194 

Baca v. Moreno Valley Unified School District, (1996) 936 F.Supp. 719 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

90 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 47 (2007) 

76 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 281 (1993) 

66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 336 (1983) 

63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 215 (1980) 

61 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 243, 253 (1978) 

59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 532 (1976) 

55 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (1972) 

 

Management Resources: 

ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATION 

The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003 

CSBA PUBLICATION  

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014 

Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2018 



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Attorney General's Office:  http://www/ag/ca/gov 

 

 

Bylaw adopted:  11/19/1980    Tulare County Board of Education 

       Visalia, California 

Revised: 1/21/1987, 1/10/2001, 3/13/2024 





Page 1 of 3 

TULARE COUNTY 
OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 
Board Policy/Superintendent Policy 

 
Students 

BP/SP 5141.52 
Suicide Prevention 

 
Suicide Prevention 
 
The County Board recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of death among youth and that school 
personnel who regularly interact with students are often in a position to recognize the warning signs of 
suicide and to offer appropriate referral and/or assistance.  To attempt to reduce suicidal behavior and its 
impact on students and families, the County Superintendent or designee shall develop measures and 
strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention. 
 
In developing measures and strategies for use by Tulare County Office of Education, the County 
Superintendent or designee shall developed these in consultation with school and community 
stakeholders, school-employed mental health professionals, and suicide prevention experts. 
 
Such measures and strategies shall include, but are not limited to: 
 

1. A Tulare County Office of Education suicide prevention coordinator shall be designated by the 
County Superintendent 
 

2. Staff development on suicide awareness and prevention for teachers, school counselors, and 
other employees who interact with students in the secondary grades at least annually 
 

3. Instruction to students in problem-solving and coping skills to promote students' mental, 
emotional, and social health and well-being, as well as instruction in recognizing and 
appropriately responding to warning signs of suicidal intent in others 
 

4. Methods for promoting a positive school climate that enhances students' feelings of 
connectedness with the school and that is characterized by caring staff and harmonious 
interrelationships among students 
 

5. The provision of information to parents/guardians regarding risk factors and warning signs of 
suicide, the severity of the youth suicide problem, the suicide prevention curriculum, basic steps 
for helping suicidal youth, and/or school and community resources that can help youth in crisis 
 

6. Encouragement for students to notify appropriate school personnel or other adults when they are 
experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's 
suicidal intentions 
 

7. Crisis intervention procedures for addressing suicide threats or attempts 
 



Page 2 of 3 

8. Counseling and other postvention strategies for helping students, staff, and others cope in the 
aftermath of a student's suicide 

 
As appropriate, these measures and strategies shall specifically address the needs of students who are at 
high risk of suicide, including, but not limited to, students who are bereaved by suicide; students with 
disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders; students who are experiencing homelessness or 
who are in out-of-home settings such as foster care; and students who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, 
transgender, or questioning youth.  (Education Code 215) 
 
The County Board shall review, and update as necessary, this policy at least every five years.  
(Education Code 215) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
215 – Student suicide prevention policies 
215.5 – Suicide prevention hotline contact information on student identification cards 
216 – Suicide prevention online training programs 
32280-32289 – Comprehensive safety plan 
49060-49079 – Student records 
49602 – Confidentiality of student information 
49604 – Suicide prevention training for school counselors 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
810-996.6 – Government Claims Act 
PENAL CODE 
11164-11174.3 – Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
5698 – Emotionally disturbed youth; legislative intent 
5850-5883 – Children's Mental Health Services Act 
COURT DECISIONS 
Corales v. Bennett (Ontario-Montclair School District), (2009) 567 F.3d 554 
 
Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade 
Twelve, 2008 
Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2003 
CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 
School Connectedness:  Strategies for Increasing Protective Factors Among Youth, 2009 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGISTS PUBLICATIONS 
Preventing Suicide:  Guidelines for Administrators and Crisis Teams, 2015 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 
National Strategy for Suicide Prevention:  Goals and Objectives for Action, rev. 2012 
Preventing Suicide:  A Toolkit for High Schools, 2012 
 
WEB SITES 
American Association of Suicidology:  http://www.suicidology.org 
American Foundation for Suicide Prevention:  http://afsp.org 
American Psychological Association:  http://www.apa.org 
American School Counselor Association:  http://www.schoolcounselor.org 



Page 3 of 3 

California Department of Education, Mental Health:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/cg/mh 
California Department of Health Care Services, Suicide Prevention Program:  
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/SuicidePrevention.aspx 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Mental Health:  http://www.cdc.gov/mentalhealth 
National Association of School Psychologists:  http://www.nasponline.org 
National Institute for Mental Health:  http://www.nimh.nih.gov 
Trevor Project:  http://thetrevorproject.org 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration:  http://www.samhsa.gov 
 
 
Policy adopted:  3/13/2019    Tulare County Board of Education 
       Visalia, California 



Page 1 of 4 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board Policy/Superintendent Policy 

 

Students 

BP/SP 5141.52 

Suicide Prevention 

 

Suicide Prevention 
 

The County Board of Education and County Superintendent recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of 

death among youth, prevention is a collective effort that requires stakeholder engagement, and that school 

personnel who regularly interact with students are often in a position to recognize the warning signs of 

suicide and to offer appropriate referral and/or assistance. To attempt to In an effort to reduce suicidal 

behavior, and its impact on students and families, and other trauma associated with suicide, the County 

Board shall incorporate any measures, strategies, practices, and supports developed by the County 

Superintendent or designee shall develop measures and strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and 

postvention. in Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) schools. 

 

In developing measures and strategies for use by Tulare County Office of Education, the County 

Superintendent or designee shall developed these in consultation with school and community stakeholders, 

school-employed mental health professionals, and suicide prevention experts. 

 

Policies and procedures for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention shall include consultation 

with school and community stakeholders, school-employed mental health professionals, suicide 

prevention experts, and, for the policy for students in grades K-6, coordination with the county mental 

health plan.  (Education Code 215) 

 

Consultation with school and community stakeholders may include TCOE and school administrators, 

school counselors, school psychologists, school social workers, school nurses, other staff, 

parents/guardians and caregivers, students, local health agencies, mental health professionals, community 

organizations, law enforcement, legal counsel, and/or the TCOE's risk manager or insurance carrier. 

Collaboration may also occur with county and/or city governments in an effort to align TCOE policy with 

any existing county, city, and/or statewide suicide prevention plans. 

 

Such TCOE measures and strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention, as prepared by 

the County Superintendent, may shall include, but are not limited to: 

 

1. A Tulare County Office of Education suicide prevention coordinator shall be designated by the 

County Superintendent 

 

2. Staff development on suicide awareness and prevention offered by the County Superintendent for 

teachers, school counselors, and other employees who interact with students in the secondary 

grades at least annually 

 

3. Age and developmentally appropriate Iinstruction to students in problem-solving, and coping 

skills, and resiliency to promote students' mental, emotional, and social health and well-being, ; 



Page 2 of 4 

help-seeking strategies and resources; as well as instruction in recognizing and appropriately 

responding and recognition of and appropriate response to warning signs of suicidal intent in others  

 

4. Methods for promoting a positive school climate that enhances students' feelings of connectedness 

with the school and that is characterized by caring staff and harmonious interrelationships among 

students 

 

5. The provision of information to parents/guardians and caregivers regarding risk and protective 

factors, and warning signs of suicide, the severity of the youth suicide problem, suicide prevention 

curriculum, TCOE's suicide prevention policy and procedures, basic steps for helping suicidal 

youth, the importance of communicating with appropriate staff if suicide risk is present or 

suspected, access to suicide prevention training, and/or school and community resources that can 

help youth in crisis 

 

6. Encouragement for students to notify appropriate school personnel or other adults when they are 

experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's 

suicidal intentions 

 

7. Crisis intervention procedures for addressing suicide threats or attempts which include, but are not 

limited to, the following actions: 

 

a. Immediately securing medical treatment and/or mental health services as necessary 

 

b. Notifying law enforcement and/or other emergency assistance if a suicidal act is being actively 

threatened 

 

c. Keeping the student under adult supervision and providing comfort to the student until the 

parent/guardian and/or appropriate support agent or agency can be contacted and has the 

opportunity to intervene 

 

d. Removing other students from the immediate area as soon as possible, if necessary 

 

8. Counseling and other postvention strategies for helping students, staff, and others cope in the 

aftermath of a student's suicide 

 

9. The review of materials and resources used in awareness efforts and communications to ensure 

they align with best practices for safe and effective messaging about suicide 

 

10. Establishment by the County Superintendent of TCOE and/or school-site crisis intervention  

team(s) to ensure the proper implementation and review of this policy and other TCOE practices 

related to the emotional and behavioral wellness of students, including, but not limited to, the 

oversight of mental health and suicide prevention training, collaboration with community mental 

health organizations, identification of resources and organizations that provide evidence-based 

treatment, collaboration to build community response, and compliance with Education Code 215 

 

As appropriate, these measures and strategies shall specifically address the needs of students who are at 

high risk of suicide, including, but not limited to, students who are bereaved by suicide; students with 

disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders; students who are experiencing homelessness or 

who are in out-of-home settings such as foster care; and students who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, 

transgender, or questioning youth. [Education Code 215] 



Page 3 of 4 

The measures and strategies may also address the needs of students with individual risk factors such as 

previous suicide attempt(s) or self-harm, history of depression or mental illness, family history of suicide 

or violence, feelings of isolation, interpersonal conflicts, a recent severe or traumatic stressor or loss, 

family instability, impulsivity, and other factors. 

 

Measures and strategies for students in grades K-6 shall be age appropriate and delivered and discussed 

in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of young students. [Education Code 215] 

 

Student identification cards for students in grades 7-12, when issued by the County Superintendent, shall 

include the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline telephone number and may also include the Crisis Text 

Line and/or a local suicide prevention hotline telephone number. [Education Code 215.5] 

 

Students shall be encouraged to notify a teacher, principal, counselor, or other adult when they are 

experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's suicidal 

intentions. 

 

Every statement regarding suicidal intent shall be taken seriously. It is the responsibility of the County 

Superintendent to ensure that any staff member who suspects or has knowledge of a student's suicidal 

intentions based on the student's verbalizations or act of self-harm is encouraged to promptly notify the 

principal, school counselor, or designated suicide prevention coordinator, who shall implement TCOE 

intervention protocols as appropriate. 

 

If a referral is made for mental health or related services for a student in grade K-6 who is a Medi-Cal 

beneficiary, TCOE shall coordinate and consult with the county mental health plan. [Education Code 215] 

 

Nothing in this policy shall be construed as authorizing or encouraging employees to act outside of the 

authorization or scope of their credential or to diagnose or treat mental illness unless specifically licensed 

and employed to do so. [Education Code 215] 

 

The County Board shall review, and update as necessary, this policy at least every five years. The County 

Board may, at its discretion, review the policy more frequently. [Education Code 215] 

 

TCOE data pertaining to school climate and reports of suicidal ideation, attempts, or death shall be 

periodically reviewed to identify patterns or trends and make recommendations regarding program 

development. 

 

This policy shall be posted in a prominent location on TCOE’s web site in a manner that is easily accessible 

to parents/guardian and students. [Education Code 234.6] 

 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 

215 – Student suicide prevention policies 

215.5 – Suicide prevention hotline contact information on student identification cards 

216 – Suicide prevention online training programs 

32280-32289 – Comprehensive safety plan 

49060-49079 – Student records 

49602 – Confidentiality of student information 

49604 – Suicide prevention training for school counselors 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

810-996.6 – Government Claims Act 



Page 4 of 4 

PENAL CODE 

11164-11174.3 – Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

5698 – Emotionally disturbed youth; legislative intent 

5850-5883 5886 – Children's Mental Health Services Act 

COURT DECISIONS 

Corales v. Bennett (Ontario-Montclair School District), (2009) 567 F.3d 554 

 

Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade 12, 2008 

Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2003 2019 

CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 

School Connectedness: Strategies for Increasing Protective Factors Among Youth, 2009 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGISTS PUBLICATIONS 

Preventing Suicide: Guidelines for Administrators and Crisis Teams, 2015 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 

National Strategy for Suicide Prevention: Goals and Objectives for Action, rev. 2012 

Preventing Suicide: A Toolkit for High Schools, 2012 

 

WEB SITES 

American Association of Suicidology:  http://www.suicidology.org 

American Foundation for Suicide Prevention:  http://afsp.org 

American Psychological Association:  http://www.apa.org 

American School Counselor Association:  http://www.schoolcounselor.org 

California Department of Education, Mental Health:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/cg/mh 

California Department of Health Care Services, Suicide Prevention Program Mental Health Services:   

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH /Pages/SuicidePrevention.aspx 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Mental Health:  http://www.cdc.gov/mentalhealth 

National Association of School Psychologists:  http://www.nasponline.org 

National Institute for Mental Health:  http://www.nimh.nih.gov 

Suicide Prevention Lifeline:  https://988lifeline.org/ 

Suicide Prevention Resource Center: https://sprc.org/about-suicide/ 

Trevor Project:  http://thetrevorproject.org 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services  

Administration:  http://www.samhsa.gov 

 

 

Policy adopted:  3/13/2019    Tulare County Board of Education 

       Visalia, California 

Revised:  __/__/2024 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Board Policy/Superintendent Policy 

 

Students 

BP/SP 5141.52 

Suicide Prevention 

 

Suicide Prevention 
 

The County Board of Education and County Superintendent recognize that suicide is a leading cause of 

death among youth, prevention is a collective effort that requires stakeholder engagement, and school 

personnel who regularly interact with students are often in a position to recognize the warning signs of 

suicide and to offer appropriate referral and/or assistance. In an effort to reduce suicidal behavior, its 

impact on students and families, and other trauma associated with suicide, the County Board shall 

incorporate any measures, strategies, practices, and supports developed by the County Superintendent for 

suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention in Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) schools. 

 

Policies and procedures for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention shall include consultation 

with school and community stakeholders, school-employed mental health professionals, suicide 

prevention experts, and, for the policy for students in grades K-6, coordination with the county mental 

health plan.  [Education Code 215] 

 

Consultation with school and community stakeholders may include TCOE and school administrators, 

school counselors, school psychologists, school social workers, school nurses, other staff, 

parents/guardians and caregivers, students, local health agencies, mental health professionals, community 

organizations, law enforcement, legal counsel, and/or the TCOE's risk manager or insurance carrier. 

Collaboration may also occur with county and/or city governments in an effort to align TCOE policy with 

any existing county, city, and/or statewide suicide prevention plans. 

 

TCOE measures and strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention, as prepared by the 

County Superintendent, may include, but are not limited to: 

 

1. A Tulare County Office of Education suicide prevention coordinator shall be designated by the 

County Superintendent 

 

2. Staff development on suicide awareness and prevention offered by the County Superintendent for 

teachers, school counselors, and other employees who interact with students  

 

3. Age and developmentally appropriate instruction to students in problem-solving, coping skills, and 

resiliency to promote students' mental, emotional, and social health and well-being ; help-seeking 

strategies and resources; and recognition of and appropriate response to warning signs of suicidal 

intent in others  

 

4. Methods for promoting a positive school climate that enhances students' feelings of connectedness 

with the school and that is characterized by caring staff and harmonious interrelationships among 

students 



 

Page 2 of 4 

5. The provision of information to parents/guardians and caregivers regarding risk and protective 

factors, warning signs of suicide, the severity of the youth suicide problem, suicide prevention 

curriculum, TCOE's suicide prevention policy and procedures, basic steps for helping suicidal 

youth, the importance of communicating with appropriate staff if suicide risk is present or 

suspected, access to suicide prevention training, and/or school and community resources that can 

help youth in crisis 

 

6. Encouragement for students to notify appropriate school personnel or other adults when they are 

experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's 

suicidal intentions 

 

7. Crisis intervention procedures for addressing suicide threats or attempts which include, but are not 

limited to, the following actions: 

 

a. Immediately securing medical treatment and/or mental health services as necessary 

 

b. Notifying law enforcement and/or other emergency assistance if a suicidal act is being actively 

threatened 

 

c. Keeping the student under adult supervision and providing comfort to the student until the 

parent/guardian and/or appropriate support agent or agency can be contacted and has the 

opportunity to intervene 

 

d. Removing other students from the immediate area as soon as possible, if necessary 

 

8. Counseling and other postvention strategies for helping students, staff, and others cope in the 

aftermath of a student's suicide 

 

9. The review of materials and resources used in awareness efforts and communications to ensure 

they align with best practices for safe and effective messaging about suicide 

 

10. Establishment by the County Superintendent of TCOE and/or school-site crisis intervention  

team(s) to ensure the proper implementation and review of this policy and other TCOE practices 

related to the emotional and behavioral wellness of students, including, but not limited to, the 

oversight of mental health and suicide prevention training, collaboration with community mental 

health organizations, identification of resources and organizations that provide evidence-based 

treatment, collaboration to build community response, and compliance with Education Code 215 

 

As appropriate, these measures and strategies shall specifically address the needs of students who are at 

high risk of suicide, including, but not limited to, students who are bereaved by suicide; students with 

disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders; students who are experiencing homelessness or 

who are in out-of-home settings such as foster care; and students who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, 

transgender, or questioning. [Education Code 215] 

 

The measures and strategies may also address the needs of students with individual risk factors such as 

previous suicide attempt(s) or self-harm, history of depression or mental illness, family history of suicide 

or violence, feelings of isolation, interpersonal conflicts, a recent severe or traumatic stressor or loss, 

family instability, impulsivity, and other factors. 

 

Measures and strategies for students in grades K-6 shall be age appropriate and delivered and discussed 



 

Page 3 of 4 

in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of young students. [Education Code 215] 

 

Student identification cards for students in grades 7-12, when issued by the County Superintendent, shall 

include the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline telephone number and may also include the Crisis Text 

Line and/or a local suicide prevention hotline telephone number. [Education Code 215.5] 

 

Students shall be encouraged to notify a teacher, principal, counselor, or other adult when they are 

experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's suicidal 

intentions. 

 

Every statement regarding suicidal intent shall be taken seriously. It is the responsibility of the County 

Superintendent to ensure that any staff member who suspects or has knowledge of a student's suicidal 

intentions based on the student's verbalizations or act of self-harm is encouraged to promptly notify the 

principal, school counselor, or designated suicide prevention coordinator, who shall implement TCOE 

intervention protocols as appropriate. 

 

If a referral is made for mental health or related services for a student in grade K-6 who is a Medi-Cal 

beneficiary, TCOE shall coordinate and consult with the county mental health plan. [Education Code 215] 

 

Nothing in this policy shall be construed as authorizing or encouraging employees to act outside of the 

authorization or scope of their credential or to diagnose or treat mental illness unless specifically licensed 

and employed to do so. [Education Code 215] 

 

The County Board shall review, and update as necessary, this policy at least every five years. The County 

Board may, at its discretion, review the policy more frequently. [Education Code 215] 

 

TCOE data pertaining to school climate and reports of suicidal ideation, attempts, or death shall be 

periodically reviewed to identify patterns or trends and make recommendations regarding program 

development. 

 

This policy shall be posted in a prominent location on TCOE’s web site in a manner that is easily accessible 

to parents/guardian and students. [Education Code 234.6] 

 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 

215  –  Student suicide prevention policies 

215.5 – Suicide prevention hotline contact information on student identification cards 

216  –  Suicide prevention online training programs 

49060-49079 – Student records 

49602 – Confidentiality of student information 

49604 – Suicide prevention training for school counselors 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

810-996.6 – Government Claims Act 

PENAL CODE 

11164-11174.3 – Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

5698 – Emotionally disturbed youth; legislative intent 

5850-5886 – Children's Mental Health Services Act 

COURT DECISIONS 

Corales v. Bennett (Ontario-Montclair School District), (2009) 567 F.3d 554 



 

Page 4 of 4 

Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade 12, 2008 

Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2019 

CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTRO L AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 

School Connectedness: Strategies for Increasing Protective Factors Among Youth, 2009 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGISTS PUBLICATIONS 

Preventing Suicide: Guidelines for Administrators and Crisis Teams, 2015 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 

National Strategy for Suicide Prevention: Goals and Objectives for Action, rev. 2012 

Preventing Suicide: A Toolkit for High Schools, 2012 

 

WEB SITES 

American Association of Suicidology:  http://www.suicidology.org 

American Foundation for Suicide Prevention:  http://afsp.org 

American Psychological Association:  http://www.apa.org 

American School Counselor Association:  http://www.schoolcounselor.org 

California Department of Education, Mental Health:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ mh 

California Department of Health Care Services, Mental Health Services:  

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Mental Health: http://www.cdc.gov/mentalhealth 

National Association of School Psychologists:  http://www.nasponline.org 

National Institute for Mental Health:  http://www.nimh.nih.gov 

Suicide Prevention Lifeline:  https://988lifeline.org/ 

Suicide Prevention Resource Center: https://sprc.org/about-suicide/ 

Trevor Project:  http://thetrevorproject.org 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services  

Administration:  http://www.samhsa.gov 

 

 

Policy adopted:  3/13/2019    Tulare County Board of Education 

       Visalia, California 

Revised:  __/__/2024 

 











Page 1 of 5 

 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Administrative Regulation 

 

Students 

AR 5141.52 

Suicide Prevention 

 

Suicide Prevention 

 

A Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) suicide prevention coordinator shall be designated by the 

County Superintendent.  This may be an existing staff person.  The suicide prevention coordinator will 

be responsible for planning and coordinating implementation of the policy for the county office 

programs and schools.  Each school principal shall designate a school suicide prevention coordinator to 

act as a point of contact in each school for issues relating to suicide prevention and policy 

implementation. 

 

Staff Development 
 

Suicide prevention training shall be provided to teachers, counselors, and other employees certificated 

and classified staff who interact with students. in grades 7-12 at least once annually.  The training shall 

be offered under the direction of the cCounty sSuperintendent/designee and/or in cooperation with one 

or more county or community mental health agencies. 
 

Materials for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental health services at the school site 

and within the community, and when and how to refer youth and their families to those services.  

Materials also may include programs that can be completed through self-review of suitable suicide 

prevention materials. [Education Code 215] 

 

Staff development shall include research and information related to the following topics: 

 

1. The higher risk of suicide among certain groups, including, but not limited to, students who are 

bereaved impacted by suicide; students with disabilities, mental illness, or substance use 

disorders; students who are experiencing homelessness or who are in out-of-home settings such 

as foster care; and students who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth 

 

2. Individual risk factors such as previous suicide attempt(s) or self-harm, history of depression or 

mental illness, family history of suicide or violence, feelings of isolation, interpersonal 

conflicts, a recent severe or traumatic stressor or loss, family instability, impulsivity, and other 

factors 

 

3. Identification of students who may be at risk of suicide, including, but not limited to Wwarning 

signs that may indicate depression, emotional distress, or suicidal intentions, such as changes in 

students' personality or behavior and verbalizations of hopelessness or suicidal intent 

 

4. Protective factors that may help to decrease a student's suicide risk, such as resiliency, problem-



Page 2 of 5 

 

solving ability, access to mental health care, and positive connections to family, peers, school, 

and community 

 

5. Instructional strategies for teaching the suicide prevention curriculum, and promoting mental 

and emotional health, reducing the stigma associated with mental illness, and using safe and 

effective messaging about suicide 

 

6. The importance of early prevention and intervention in reducing the risk of suicide 

 

7. 6.  7. School and community resources and services, including resources and services that meet 

the specific needs of high-risk groups 

 

8. 7.  8. Appropriate ways to interact with a student who is demonstrating emotional distress or is 

suicidal and procedures for intervening when a student attempts, threatens, or discloses the 

desire to die by suicide, including, but not limited to, appropriate protocols for constant 

monitoring and supervision of the student, during the time the student is in the school's physical 

custody, while the immediate referral of the student to medical or mental health services is 

being processed 

 

9. 8. 9. County office/program procedures for responding after a suicide has occurred. 

 

10.  Common misconceptions about suicide 

 

Publication and distribution of the policy will be distributed annually and will be included in all student 

and teacher handbooks and on the school website. 

 

TCOE may provide additional professional development in suicide risk assessment and crisis 

intervention to TCOE mental health professionals, including, but not limited to, school counselors, 

psychologists, social workers, and nurses. 

 

Instruction 

 

The county office’s comprehensive health education program shall promote the healthy mental, 

emotional, and social development of students and shall be aligned with the state content standards and 

curriculum framework.  Suicide prevention instruction shall be incorporated into the health education 

curriculum at appropriate secondary grades in an age and developmentally appropriate manner and shall 

be designed to help students: 

 

1. Identify and analyze warning signs of depression and self-destructive behaviors and risk factors 

associated with suicide, including, but not limited to, understanding how mental health 

challenges and emotional distress, such as feelings of depression, loss, isolation, inadequacy, and 

anxiety can lead to thoughts of suicide 

2. Develop coping and resiliency skills for dealing with stress and trauma, and building self-esteem 

3. Learn to listen, be honest, share feelings, and get help when communicating with friends who 

show signs of suicidal intent 

4. Identify trusted adults, school resources, including the county office's suicide prevention, 

intervention, and referral procedures; and/or community crisis intervention resources where 

youth can get help and recognize that there is no stigma associated with seeking services for 

mental health, substance abuse, and/or suicide prevention 



Page 3 of 5 

 

5. Develop help-seeking strategies to promote reduce the stigma associated with seeking services 

for mental health, substance abuse, and/or suicide prevention 

6. Recognize that early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide 

The County Superintendent or designee may develop and implement school activities that raise 

awareness about mental health wellness and suicide prevention. 

Student Identification Cards 

 

Student identification cards for students in grades 7-12, shall include the National Suicide Prevention 

Lifeline telephone number and may also include the Crisis Text Line, such as 988, and/or a local suicide 

prevention hotline telephone number. [Education Code 215.5] 
 

Intervention 

 

Students shall be encouraged to notify a teacher, principal, counselor, or other adult when they are 

experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's suicidal 

intentions. 

 

Every statement regarding suicidal intent shall be taken seriously. Whenever a staff member suspects or 

has knowledge of a student's suicidal intentions based on the student's verbalizations or act of self-harm,  

the staff member shall promptly notify the principal, school counselor, or designee who shall implement 

intervention protocols as appropriate.  

Although any personal information that a student discloses to a school counselor shall generally not be 

revealed, released, referenced, or discussed with third parties, the counselor may report to the principal 

or student's parents/guardians when there is reasonable cause to believe that disclosure is necessary to 

avert a clear and present danger to the health, safety, or welfare of the student or others within the school 

community.  In addition, the counselor may disclose information of a personal nature to 

psychotherapists, other health care providers, or the school nurse for the sole purpose of referring the 

student for treatment. , or to report child abuse and neglect as required by Penal Code 11164-11174.3. 

[Education Code 49602] 

 

School employees shall act only within the authorization and scope of their credential or license.  An 

employee is not authorized to diagnose or treat mental illness unless specifically licensed and employed 

to do so. [Education Code 215] 

 

Whenever schools establish a peer counseling system to provide support for students, peer counselors 

shall receive training that includes identification of the warning signs of suicidal behavior and referral of 

a suicidal student to appropriate adults. 

 

When a suicide attempt or threat is reported, the principal or designee shall ensure student safety by 

taking the following actions: 

 

1. Immediately securing medical treatment and/or mental health services as necessary 

2. Notifying law enforcement and/or other emergency assistance if a suicidal act is being actively 

threatened 

3. Notifying the Suicide Prevention Coordinator 



Page 4 of 5 

 

4.  3. Keeping the student under continuous adult supervision until the parent/guardian and/or  

appropriate support agent or agency can be contacted and has the opportunity to intervene 

5.  4. Removing other students and nonessential persons from the immediate area as soon as  

possible, if necessary 

 

The principal or designee shall document the incident in writing, including the steps that the school took 

in response to the suicide attempt or threat. 

 

The cCounty sSuperintendent or designee shall follow up with the parent/guardian and student in a 

timely manner to provide referrals to appropriate services as needed.  If the parent/guardian does not 

access treatment for the student, the cCounty sSuperintendent or designee may meet with the 

parent/guardian to identify barriers to treatment and assist the family in providing follow-up care for the 

student.  If follow-up care is still not provided, the cCounty sSuperintendent or designee shall consider 

whether it is necessary, pursuant to laws for mandated reporters of child neglect, to refer the matter to 

the local child protective services agency. 

 

For any student returning to school after a mental health crisis, the principal or designee and/or school 

counselor may meet with the parents/guardians and, if appropriate, with the student to discuss re-entry 

and appropriate next steps to ensure the student's readiness for return to school and determine the need 

for ongoing support. 

 

Postvention 

 

1.  In the event that a student dies by suicide, the County Superintendent or designee shall communicate 

with the student's parents/guardians to offer condolences, assistance, and resources.  In accordance with 

the laws governing confidentiality of student record information, the County Superintendent or designee 

shall make an earnest effort to consult with the parents/guardians regarding facts that may be divulged to 

other students, parents/guardians, and staff. 

 

2.  Call an emergency staff meeting to relay information and formulate appropriate procedures for 

supporting students, staff and parents.  The death shall not be called a suicide.  This is a legal 

determination that can only be made by the coroner’s office.  It should be referred to as a death or a 

tragic death.   

 

3.  Provide counseling support to students.  Contact additional psychologists/counselors to increase 

available support.  Have a place available for students to go to (Support Room) and walk around campus 

to be available for any student needing support.  Counselors/school psychologists should follow the 

student’s schedule and be available to assist the students and teachers in those classes.  Students must be 

allowed to grieve, but there should be no large group gatherings such as an assembly.  Students should 

not be allowed to congregate in groups without staff supervision.  Identify any students who might be at 

risk and call them in to talk.   

 

4.  School will be conducted as usual to the greatest extent possible.  In no case should school be 

canceled. 

 

5.  Prepare a note to send home to parents indicating that a tragic death has occurred and that 

postvention procedures and counseling has begun. 

 

6.  Schedule a parent meeting as soon as possible to help parents deal with the issue and to advise them 



Page 5 of 5 

 

how to help students. 

 

7.  Any response to media inquiries shall be handled by the TCOE-designated spokesperson who shall 

not divulge confidential information.  The county office’s response shall not sensationalize suicide and 

shall focus on the county office’s postvention plan and available resources. 

 

The cCounty sSuperintendent or designee shall implement procedures to address students' and staff's 

grief and to minimize the risk of imitative suicide or suicide contagion.  The cCounty sSuperintendent or 

designee shall provide students, parents/guardians, and staff with information, counseling, and/or 

referrals to community agencies as needed.  Students significantly affected by suicide death and those at 

risk of imitative behavior should be identified and closely monitored. School staff may receive 

assistance from school counselors or other mental health professionals in determining how best to 

discuss the suicide or attempted suicide with students. 

 

After any suicide or attempted suicide by a student, the cCounty sSuperintendent or designee shall 

provide an opportunity for all staff who responded to the incident to debrief, evaluate the effectiveness 

of the strategies used, and make recommendations for future actions. 

 

 

Regulation approved:  4/11/2019         

       Tulare County Superintendent of Schools 

       Visalia, California 

Revised:__/__/2024 

 



 

Page 1 of 5 

 

TULARE COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

 

Administrative Regulation 

 

Students 

AR 5141.52 

Suicide Prevention 

 

Suicide Prevention 

 

A Tulare County Office of Education (TCOE) suicide prevention coordinator shall be designated by the 

County Superintendent.  This may be an existing staff person.  The suicide prevention coordinator will be 

responsible for planning and coordinating implementation of the policy for the county office programs 

and schools.  Each school principal shall designate a school suicide prevention coordinator to act as a 

point of contact in each school for issues relating to suicide prevention and policy implementation. 

 

Staff Development 
 

Suicide prevention training shall be provided to certificated and classified staff who interact with students. 

The training shall be offered under the direction of the County Superintendent/designee and/or in 

cooperation with one or more county or community mental health agencies. 
 

Materials for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental health services at the school site 

and within the community, and when and how to refer youth and their families to those services.  Materials 

also may include programs that can be completed through self-review of suitable suicide prevention 

materials. [Education Code 215] 

 

Staff development shall include research and information related to the following topics: 

 

1. The higher risk of suicide among certain groups, including, but not limited to, students who are 

impacted by suicide; students with disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders; students 

who are experiencing homelessness or who are in out-of-home settings such as foster care; and 

students who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning  

 

2. Individual risk factors such as previous suicide attempt(s) or self-harm, history of depression or 

mental illness, family history of suicide or violence, feelings of isolation, interpersonal conflicts, 

a recent severe or traumatic stressor or loss, family instability, impulsivity, and other factors 

 

3. Identification of students who may be at risk of suicide, including, but not limited to warning signs 

that may indicate depression, emotional distress, or suicidal intentions, such as changes in students' 

personality or behavior and verbalizations of hopelessness or suicidal intent 

 

4. Protective factors that may help to decrease a student's suicide risk, such as resiliency, problem-

solving ability, access to mental health care, and positive connections to family, peers, school, and 

community 

 



 

Page 2 of 5 

 

5. Instructional strategies for teaching the suicide prevention curriculum, promoting mental and 

emotional health, reducing the stigma associated with mental illness, and using safe and effective 

messaging about suicide 

 

6. The importance of early prevention and intervention in reducing the risk of suicide 

 

7. School and community resources and services, including resources and services that meet the 

specific needs of high-risk groups 

 

8. Appropriate ways to interact with a student who is demonstrating emotional distress or is suicidal 

and procedures for intervening when a student attempts, threatens, or discloses the desire to die by 

suicide, including, but not limited to, appropriate protocols for constant monitoring and 

supervision of the student, during the time the student is in the school's physical custody, while the 

immediate referral of the student to medical or mental health services is being processed 

 

9. County office/program procedures for responding after a suicide has occurred. 

 

10. Common misconceptions about suicide 

 

Publication and distribution of the policy will be distributed annually and will be included in all student 

and teacher handbooks and on the school website. 

 

TCOE may provide additional professional development in suicide risk assessment and crisis intervention 

to TCOE mental health professionals, including, but not limited to, school counselors, psychologists, 

social workers, and nurses. 

 

Instruction 

 

The county office’s comprehensive health education program shall promote the healthy mental, emotional, 

and social development of students and shall be aligned with the state content standards and curriculum 

framework.  Suicide prevention instruction shall be incorporated into the health education curriculum in 

an age and developmentally appropriate manner and shall be designed to help students: 

 

1. Identify and analyze warning signs and risk factors associated with suicide, including, but not 

limited to, understanding how mental health challenges and emotional distress, such as feelings of 

depression, loss, isolation, inadequacy, and anxiety can lead to thoughts of suicide 

2. Develop coping and resiliency skills for dealing with stress and trauma, and building self-esteem 

3. Learn to listen, be honest, share feelings, and get help when communicating with friends who show 

signs of suicidal intent 

4. Identify trusted adults, school resources, including the county office's suicide prevention, 

intervention, and referral procedures; and/or community crisis intervention resources where youth 

can get help  

5. Develop help-seeking strategies to promote reduce the stigma associated with seeking services for 

mental health, substance abuse, and/or suicide prevention 

6. Recognize that early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide 

The County Superintendent or designee may develop and implement school activities that raise awareness 

about mental health wellness and suicide prevention. 



 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Student Identification Cards 

 

Student identification cards for students in grades 7-12, shall include the National Suicide Prevention 

Lifeline telephone number and may also include the Crisis Text Line, such as 988, and/or a local suicide 

prevention hotline telephone number. [Education Code 215.5] 
 

Intervention 

 

Students shall be encouraged to notify a teacher, principal, counselor, or other adult when they are 

experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's suicidal 

intentions. 

 

Every statement regarding suicidal intent shall be taken seriously. Whenever a staff member suspects or 

has knowledge of a student’s suicidal intentions based on the student's verbalizations or act of self-harm,  

the staff member shall promptly notify the principal, school counselor, or designee who shall implement 

intervention protocols as appropriate.  

Although any personal information that a student discloses to a school counselor shall generally not be 

revealed, released, referenced, or discussed with third parties, the counselor may report to the principal or 

student's parents/guardians when there is reasonable cause to believe that disclosure is necessary to avert 

a clear and present danger to the health, safety, or welfare of the student or others within the school 

community.  In addition, the counselor may disclose information of a personal nature to psychotherapists, 

other health care providers, or the school nurse for the sole purpose of referring the student for treatment, 

or to report child abuse and neglect as required by Penal Code 11164-11174.3. [Education Code 49602] 

 

School employees shall act only within the authorization and scope of their credential or license. An 

employee is not authorized to diagnose or treat mental illness unless specifically licensed and employed 

to do so. [Education Code 215] 

 

Whenever schools establish a peer counseling system to provide support for students, peer counselors 

shall receive training that includes identification of the warning signs of suicidal behavior and referral of 

a suicidal student to appropriate adults. 

 

When a suicide attempt or threat is reported, the principal or designee shall ensure student safety by taking 

the following actions: 

 

1. Immediately securing medical treatment and/or mental health services as necessary 

2. Notifying law enforcement and/or other emergency assistance if a suicidal act is being actively 

threatened 

3. Keeping the student under adult supervision until the parent/guardian and/or  

appropriate support agent or agency can be contacted and has the opportunity to intervene 

4. Removing other students and nonessential persons from the immediate area as soon as  

possible, if necessary 

 

The principal or designee shall document the incident in writing, including the steps that the school took 

in response to the suicide attempt or threat. 

 

The County Superintendent or designee shall follow up with the parent/guardian and student in a timely 

manner to provide referrals to appropriate services as needed. If the parent/guardian does not access 



 

Page 4 of 5 

 

treatment for the student, the County Superintendent or designee may meet with the parent/guardian to 

identify barriers to treatment and assist the family in providing follow-up care for the student.  If follow-

up care is still not provided, the County Superintendent or designee shall consider whether it is necessary, 

pursuant to laws for mandated reporters of child neglect, to refer the matter to the local child protective 

services agency. 

 

For any student returning to school after a mental health crisis, the principal or designee and/or school 

counselor may meet with the parents/guardians and, if appropriate, with the student to discuss re-entry 

and appropriate next steps to ensure the student's readiness for return to school and determine the need for 

ongoing support. 

 

Postvention 

 

1.  In the event that a student dies by suicide, the County Superintendent or designee shall communicate 

with the student's parents/guardians to offer condolences, assistance, and resources.  In accordance with 

the laws governing confidentiality of student record information, the County Superintendent or designee 

shall make an earnest effort to consult with the parents/guardians regarding facts that may be divulged to 

other students, parents/guardians, and staff. 

 

2. Call an emergency staff meeting to relay information and formulate appropriate procedures for 

supporting students, staff and parents.  The death shall not be called a suicide.  This is a legal determination 

that can only be made by the coroner’s office.  It should be referred to as a death or a tragic death.   

 

3. Provide counseling support to students.  Contact additional psychologists/counselors to increase 

available support.  Have a place available for students to go to (Support Room) and walk around campus 

to be available for any student needing support.  Counselors/school psychologists should follow the 

student’s schedule and be available to assist the students and teachers in those classes.  Students must be 

allowed to grieve, but there should be no large group gatherings such as an assembly.  Students should 

not be allowed to congregate in groups without staff supervision.  Identify any students who might be at 

risk and call them in to talk.   

 

4.  School will be conducted as usual to the greatest extent possible. In no case should school be canceled. 

 

5.  Prepare a note to send home to parents indicating that a tragic death has occurred and that postvention 

procedures and counseling has begun. 

 

6.  Schedule a parent meeting as soon as possible to help parents deal with the issue and to advise them 

how to help students. 

 

7.  Any response to media inquiries shall be handled by the TCOE-designated spokesperson who shall not 

divulge confidential information.  The county office’s response shall not sensationalize suicide and shall 

focus on the county office’s postvention plan and available resources. 

 

The County Superintendent or designee shall implement procedures to address students' and staff's grief 

and to minimize the risk of imitative suicide or suicide contagion. The County Superintendent or designee 

shall provide students, parents/guardians, and staff with information, counseling, and/or referrals to 

community agencies as needed. Students significantly affected by suicide death and those at risk of 

imitative behavior should be identified and closely monitored. School staff may receive assistance from 

school counselors or other mental health professionals in determining how best to discuss the suicide or 



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

attempted suicide with students. 

 

After any suicide or attempted suicide by a student, the County Superintendent or designee shall provide 

an opportunity for all staff who responded to the incident to debrief, evaluate the effectiveness of the 

strategies used, and make recommendations for future actions. 

 

 

Regulation approved:  4/11/2019         

       Tulare County Superintendent of Schools 

       Visalia, California 

Revised: __/__/2024 



TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
BOARD ENCLOSURE FORM 

SUBMITTED BY:   
 
 

SUBJECT:    
 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY:   
 
 

FINANCING:     
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 

Encl. No.__9___ 
Agenda of     03/13/2024

Tammy Bradford, Assistant Superintendent
Special Services Division

IDEA 619 Federal Preschool Grant Award 2023-2024

The Federal Preschool Grant award is specifically allocated for special education and related
services to children with disabilities for preschool ages three, four, and five.

$1,212,888 to be expended by September 30, 2025.

Approval of funds.



TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
BOARD ENCLOSURE FORM 

SUBMITTED BY:   

SUBJECT:   

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY:   

FINANCING:    

RECOMMENDATION:  

Encl. No._10____ 
Agenda of    03/13/2024

Tammy Bradford Assistant Superintendent
Special Services Division

Juvenile Detention Facility (JDF) Proposed School Calendar 2024-2025

The JDF school calendar is being revised to align with California Education Code 48645.3:

(b) Juvenile court schools shall not be closed on any weekday of the calendar year, except those
weekdays adopted by the county board of education as school holidays or set aside by the county
board of education for inservice purposes. However, the county board of education may close
juvenile court schools when it deems the closing is necessary to accommodate contingencies.

Not applicable.

Recommend adoption.



TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
COURT SCHOOL CALENDAR

2024-2025

M T W T F M T W T F
1 2 3 4 H 5 1H 2 3
8 9 10 11 12 6 7 8 9 10

15 16 17 18 19 13 14 15 16 17
22 23 24 25 26 20 H 21 22 23 24
29 30 31 0 27 28 29 30 31 18

M T W T F M T W T F
1 2

5 6 7 8 9 T 3 4 5 6 7
12 13 14 15 16 10 H 11 12 13 14
19 20 21 22 23 17 H 18 19 20 21
26 27 28 29 30 13 24 25 26 27 28 18

M T W T F M T W T F
2 H 3 4 5 6 3 4 5 6 7
9 10 11 12 13 10 11 12 13 14

16 17 18 19 20 17 18 19 20 21
23 24 25 26 27 24 25 26 27 28
30 20 31 21

M T W T F M T W T F
1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

7 8 9 10 11 7 8 9 10 11
14 15 16 17 18 14 15 16 17 18 H
21 22 23 24 25 21 22 23 24 25
28 29 30 31 23 28 29 30 16

M T W T F M T W T F
1 1 2

4 5 6 7 8 5 6 7 8 9
11 H 12 13 14 15 12 13 14 15 16
18 19 20 21 22 19 20 21 22 23
25 26 27 28 H 29 H 15 26 H 27 28 29 30 21

M T W T F M T W T F
2 3 4 5 6 2 3 4 5 6
9 10 11 12 13 9T 10 11 12 13

16 17 18 19 20 16 17 18 19 H 20
23 24 H 25 H 26 27 23 24 25 26 27
30 31 H 15 30 5

No School/Holiday July 4 Independence Day April 18 Good Friday
September 2 Labor Day May 26 Memorial Day

Minimum/Staff & Students November 11 Veterans' Day June 19 Juneteenth Day
Minimum/Staff Dev. November 28 & 29 Thanksgiving
Minimum/Conferences December 24 & 25 Christmas 1st 4-Oct Prog
Regular School December 31/January 1 New Year 2nd 20-Dec Sem
Summer School January 20 Martin Luther King Day 3rd 14-Mar Prog

February 10 Lincoln's Birthday 4th 6-Jun Sem
February 17 Washington's Birthday

May 2025

June 2025December 2024

November 2024

July 2024 January 2025

October 2024

September 2024

August 2024 February 2025

March 2025

April 2025

T- Teacher Work Day
Teacher days -185 / School Days-223H- Holiday  

No School/Inservice 

Winter Session

Grading Period End Day



 Encl. No._____ 
 Agenda of     
               
 
 
 
 TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 BOARD ENCLOSURE FORM 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:    
 
 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:    
 
 
 
 
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FINANCING:     
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

 
 

Transportation Services 

 
Enter description of transportation services offered to pupils, and how it will prioritize 
planned transportation services for pupils in transitional kindergarten, kindergarten, 
and any of grades 1 - 6 inclusive and pupils who are low income. Plan may provide for 
the LEA to partner with municipally owned transit system to provide services to middle 
and high school students. An LEA may provide no-cost transit passes to students. 

 
The Tulare County SELPA provides home-to-school transportation services for 
qualifying Member School Districts for students with disabilities from Preschool through 
the Adult Transitional Program, regardless of income, and that are enrolled in the County 
Operated Programs for Special Education, and with required transportation on the 
student's IEP. The SELPA shall ensure that the concept of “Least Restrictive 
Environment” (LRE) applies to the transportation of students with special needs as 
operationalized by its Member LEAs. 

 
When an IEP team determines that transportation is not a necessary related service, the 
child’s parent/guardian shall choose the mode of travel to and from school from the 
options available to general education students. When addressing transportation as a 
related service, there are two categories of students with special needs to be considered: 
(1) Those for whom transportation is a related service, but delivering that service does 
not require any accommodation. These students can ride with their peers with no special 
needs; and (2) those for whom transportation is a related service and accommodation is 
necessary to ensure they can access educational services. 

 
Enter description of LEA's transportation services that would be accessible to pupils 
with disabilities, and homeless children and youth. 

Transportation services for special education students may be provided by the regular 
transportation system of an LEA, specially designed vehicles operated by an LEA, 
contracts with other public or private agencies or by payment in lieu of transportation to 
parents or other qualified individuals. The responsibility for providing and paying for 
transportation services may vary according to the circumstances related to individual 
placements of students. 



 

 

The following listing, which is not all inclusive, identifies the most common situations 
which may require that transportation be provided and identifies the LEA/s responsible 
for providing and paying the costs of the service. 

A. For students who are residents of the school district which operates the special 
education program in which the student has been placed, the district of residence 
must provide and/or pay for the transportation. 

B. For students who are residents of one school district, but have been placed 
through the IEP process to receive service in another district or SELPA, the 
district of residence is responsible to provide and/or pay the transportation costs. 

C. For students who are residents of a school district or reside in an LCI or FFH 
within a school district, and are placed through an IEP in a Nonpublic school or 
Agency, the district making the placement is responsible to provide and/or pay the 
costs for the transportation. 

D. For students who reside in school districts within the SELPA, but are assigned 
through the IEP process to programs for which the county office is given 
responsibility shall, 

a. Wherever possible, pupils with disabilities shall be transported by regular 
transportation to classes and programs. 

b. Pupils placed in special classes operated by the Tulare County Office of 
Education shall, whenever possible, be transported by regular district 
transportation. 

E. Students transported to special day classes outside of their district of residence 
and there being no other available means, shall be provided transportation, a) 
under the Tulare County Office of Education Master Transportation Contract, or 
b) with private drivers or parents in isolated cases. 

F. If this is not feasible, then the county office has the responsibility to apply all state 
transportation revenues received to reduce excess costs. The school districts in the 
county are responsible for the excess costs of transportation services provided by the 
SELPA in accordance with the SELPA’s Funding Allocation Plan (FAP), and SELPA 
Transportation Policy # 9020. 

G. Transportation will be provided to and from sites or clinics where a student is 
scheduled to receive a related service that is included in the student’s IEP. The 
district of residence is responsible for the cost. 
 
 



 

 

 
Enter description of how unduplicated pupils, would be able to access available home- 
to-school transportation at no-cost to the pupils. 

 
Transportation services for special education students may be provided by the regular 
transportation system of an LEA, specially designed vehicles operated by an LEA, 
contracts with other public or private agencies or by payment in lieu of transportation to 
parents or other qualified individuals. The responsibility for providing and paying for 
transportation services may vary according to the circumstances related to individual 
placements of students. 

 
The following listing, which is not all inclusive, identifies the most common situations 
which may require that transportation be provided and identifies the LEA/s responsible 
for providing and paying the costs of the service. 

H. For students who are residents of the school district which operates the special 
education program in which the student has been placed, the district of residence 
must provide and/or pay for the transportation. 

I. For students who are residents of one school district, but have been placed 
through the IEP process to receive service in another district or SELPA, the 
district of residence is responsible to provide and/or pay the transportation costs. 

J. For students who are residents of a school district or reside in a Licensed 
Children’s Institutions (LCI) or Family Foster Home (FFH) within a school 
district, and are placed through an IEP in a Nonpublic school or Agency, the 
district making the placement is responsible to provide and/or pay the costs for the 
transportation. 

K. For students who reside in school districts within the SELPA, but are assigned 
through the IEP process to programs for which the county office is given 
responsibility shall, 

a. Wherever possible, pupils with disabilities shall be transported by regular transportation 
to classes and programs. 

b. Pupils placed in special day classes operated by the Tulare County 
Office of Education shall, whenever possible, be transported by regular 
district transportation. 

 



 

 

 
L. Students transported to special day classes outside of their district of residence 

and there being no other available means, shall be provided transportation, a) 
under the Tulare County Office of Education Master Transportation Contract, or 
b) with private drivers or parents in isolated cases. 

M. If this is not feasible, then the county office has the responsibility to apply all state 
transportation revenues received to reduce excess costs. The school districts in the 
county are responsible for the excess costs of transportation services provided by 
the SELPA in accordance with the SELPA’s Funding Allocation Plan (FAP), and 
SELPA Transportation Policy # 9020. 

N. Transportation will be provided to and from sites or clinics where a student is 
scheduled to receive a related service that is included in the student’s IEP. The 
district of residence is responsible for the cost. 

 
 

Consultation 

 
Enter description of the required plan consultation with classified staff, teachers, school 
administrators, regional local transit authorities, local air pollution control districts and 
air quality management districts, parents, pupils and other stakeholders. 

 
Tulare County SELPA will use our School Site Council and Community Advisory 
meetings for the consultation needed.  Utilizing both venues will provide us with 
representation of parents, pupils, classified staff, teachers, school administrators, and 
various other stakeholders. We will also be able to make phone calls and/or meetings for 
the regional local transit authorities, local air pollution control districts, and air quality 
management districts, and other stakeholders as needed and seen as necessary.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   



 

 

Revenue Calculation  

     Total 2022-2023 Transportation Expenses (Function 3600) 
 

6,768,510.67 

     Less Capital Outlay (object 6XXX, Function 3600) 
 

-  

     Less Nonagency Expenditures (Goal 7110,7150, Function 3600) 
 

-  

     Estimated 60% Reimbursement 
 

4,061,106.40 

     Less 2023-2024 Transportation add-on (from LCFF Calculator) 
 

1,950,927.00 
   

Total Revenue (Object 8590, Resource 0000) 
                      
2,110,179.40 

   
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

     2000-2999 - Classified Salaries 
 

-  

     3000-3999 - Employee Benefits 
 

-  

     4000-4999 - Books and Supplies 
 

-  

     5000-5999 - Services and other Operating Expenditures 
 

6,768,510.67 

     6000-6999 - Capital Outlay 
 

-  

     7000-7999 - Other Outgo 
 

951.05 
   

Total Expenditures    
                    
6,769,461.72 

   
Board Approval Date:   (must be on or before April 1, 2024)   

   
The Transportation plan and revenue calculations were developed in accordance with Education 
Code Sections 39800.1 and 41850.1. 

 
 



12



     
            

 
 

California Friday Night Live Month 
 

 Whereas, The California Friday Night Live program, which was developed in Sacramento 
in 1984 as the model program for the State of California in engaging young people as active 
leaders and resources in their communities to reduce underage alcohol use and address other 
challenges faced by youth by building partnerships for positive youth development; and 
 
 Whereas, The California Department of Health Care Services established the California 
Friday Night Live Partnership to serve and support the entire state, ensuring that all young 
people would have opportunities to participate in youth-driven Friday Night Live programs; and 
 

Whereas, the Tulare County Office of Education houses and supports the operation of 
the California Friday Night Live Partnership in 1996 to oversee the statewide coordination of 
Friday Night Live programs 
 
 Whereas, Youth in Friday Night Live programs experience an environment that provides 
for physical and emotional safety, which allows them to express their authentic selves; and 
 
 Whereas, Participants engage with their communities to learn about its resources, 
interact with community members and stakeholders, and give back in a positive way; and 
 
 Whereas, Youth partners in Friday Night Live programs have the opportunity to 
participate in decision-making, learn how to express their opinions constructively and hear 
those of others, and take action on issues or projects they are passionate about; and 
 
 Whereas, Participants build caring and meaningful relationships with their peers and 
adult allies that support a sense of belonging; and 
 
 Whereas, Youth experience opportunities to engage in interesting and relevant skill 
development activities that will better prepare them for the challenges they may face and to 
develop healthy personal attitudes and behaviors related to alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs, 
violence prevention, and academic completion by fostering learning; and 
 
 Whereas, The mental health and resiliency of young people can be promoted by 
sustainable social emotional learning practices and core competencies; and  
 

Whereas, Friday Night Live supports diverse groups of young people by providing 
opportunities for meaningful, positive connections to their school and community; and 
 

Whereas, During the month of April 2024, youth partners at chapters in 50 counties will 
raise awareness throughout the State of California to reduce underage drinking, underage 
gambling, and tobacco use by mobilizing their communities with a unified call to action; now, 
therefore, be it 
 
 Resolved by the Tulare County Office of Education that the month of April 2024 be 
recognized as California Friday Night Live Month (23/24-09), and applauds and thanks the 
leadership, staff, volunteers, and youth who are committed to improving the quality of life for 
present and future generations. 
 
 
____________________________________________________   ________________________ 
Signature        Date 























































































































































































                                                                                                                                                        Encl. No.  15 
Agenda 3/13/24 

 
 
 
 

TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
BOARD ENCLOSURE FORM 

 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 

 
 Joe Enea, TCOE Board President 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: 

 
 Vote for the 2024 CSBA Assembly County Delegate Region 12 
 
 
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY: 

 
  No nominations have been received.  However, per instructions from CSBA, our board may 
write in the name of a board member to fill this seat. 
 

FINANCING: 
 
 None 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open to receive a name to fill this seat of CSBA 2024 Delegate Assembly for Region 12 













                                                                                                                                                        Encl. No.  16 
Agenda 3/13/24 

 
 
 
 

TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
BOARD ENCLOSURE FORM 

 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 

 
 Joe Enea, TCOE Board President 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: 

 
 Vote for the 2024 CSBA Assembly County Delegate Region 12-A 
 
 
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY: 

 
Per instructions from CSBA, our board may vote for two of the listed names to fill the seats. 
 

FINANCING: 
 
 None 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Our board may vote for two of the listed names to fill the seats of CSBA 2024 Delegate Assembly 
for Region 12-A 
























	Agenda for March 2024  Board Meeting
	Encl No 1  Feb 2024 minutes
	Vote Results
	Vote Results
	Vote Results
	Vote Results
	Vote Results
	Vote Results
	Vote Results

	Encl No 2 Credentials Registered - March 2024
	Encl No 3 Temp County Certificates - March 2024
	Encl No 4 Emerg Permits - March 2024
	Encl No 5 BB 9320
	Encl No 5 B  working BB 9320  Meetings And Notices
	Encl No 5 C final version BB 9320 Meetings And Notices
	Encl No 6   03072024112942-0001
	Encl No 6 B  working BB 9322 Agenda Meeting Materials
	Encl No 6 C  final version BB 9322 Agenda Meeting Materials
	Encl No 7  03072024113450-0001
	Encl No 7 B  working BB 9325 Meeting Conduct
	Encl No 7 C  final version BB 9325 Meeting Conduct
	Encl No 8 BP-SP-AR  5141.52
	Encl No 8-B    5141_52 BP SP Suicide Prevention adpt 3-13-19
	Encl No 8-C  working BP _SP 5141_52  Suicide Prevention
	Encl No 8-D   proposed version BP_SP 5141_52  Suicide Prevention
	Encl No 8-E   5141_52 AR Suicide Prevention apprvd 4-11-19
	Encl No 8-F  working AR 5141_52 Suicide Prevention
	Encl No 8-G  proposed 2024 version AR 5141_52 Suicide Prevention
	Encl No 9  IDEA  Federal Preschool Grant
	Encl No 10  JDF Proposed Calendar 24-25 Board Agenda Item
	JDF Proposed School Calendar 24-25 - Enclosure
	JDF Proposed new School Calendar  24-25  school year 2.16.24 FINAL
	Sheet1


	Encl No 11 Transportation Plan
	Transportation Plan  Board Agenda Item
	Transportation Plan - Enclosure

	2023-24 Transportation Plan

	Encl No 12  - FNL Month_
	Encl No 12 B  TCOE 2024 FNL Month Resolution
	Encl No 13 Budget Revisions thru 1.31.24
	Encl No 13 B   23-24 2nd Interim Budget Revisions BOARD
	Encl No 14 Second Interim Report
	Encl No 14 B  23-24 2nd Interim Reports-BOARD
	Encl No 15  CSBA Region 12
	Encl No 15 B
	Encl No 16  CSBA Region 12A
	Encl No 16 B

	Date of Board Meeting: 03/13/2024
	Name and Title of Person Submitting Item: Tammy Bradford Assistant SuperintendentSpecial Services Division
	Subject of Item: Transportation Plan
	Description/Summary of Item: The Tulare County SELPA provides home-to-school transportation services for qualifying Member School Districts for students with disabilities from Preschool through the Adult Transitional Program, regardless of income, and that are enrolled in the County Operated Programs for Special Education, and with required transportation on the student's IEP. 
	Financing for Item: Not applicable.
	Recommendation for Item: Recommend adoption.


